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Exhibit D

Exhibit Request:

For each subsidiary or affiliate of the exchange, provide unconsolidated financial
statements for the latest fiscal year. Such financial statements shall consist, at a minimum,
of a balance sheet and an income statement with such footnotes and other disclosures as are

necessary to avoid rendering the financial statements misleading. If any affiliate or
subsidiary is required by another Commission rule to submit annual financial statements, a
statement to that effect with a citation to the other Commission rule, may be provided in
lieu of the financial statements required here.

Response:

1. EDGX Exchange, Inc.,an affiliate of EDGA Exchange, Inc., filed, at the same
time as this filing, financial statements for the year endedDecember 31,2013
with the Commission pursuant to Rule 6a-2(b)(1) under the Securities Exchange
Act of 1934.

2. For the financial statementsof Direct Edge,Inc. the parent of EDGA Exchange

Inc., pleaserefer to the attachment submitted aspart of Exhibit I to this Form l.

3. For the financial statements of Direct Edge Holdings LLC, the parent of Direct
Edge, Inc.,please refer to the attaclunent submitted as part of Exhibit I to this
Form 1.

4. For the financial statementsof Direct Edge ECN LLC d/blaDE Route, an affiliate
of EDGA Exchange, Inc.pleaserefer to the attachment submitted as part of
Exhibit I to this Form 1.

5. For the fmancial statements of BATS Global Markets Holdings, Inc. (f/k/a BATS
Global Markets, Inc.), an affiliate of EDGA Exchange, Inc.please refer to the

attachment submitted,as part of Exhibit I to this Fonn 1.

6. For the financial statementsof BATS Trading,Inc.,an affiliate of EDGA
Exchange, Inc. please refer to the attachment submitted as part of Exhibit I to this
Form l.

7. For the financial statements of BATS Exchange, Inc.,an affiliate of EDGA
Exchange, Inc. pleaserefer to the attachment submitted aspart of Exhibit I to this
Form 1.

8. For the financial statements of BATS Y-Exchange, Inc.,an affiliate of EDGA

Exchange, Inc.pleaserefer to theattachment submitted as part of Exhibit I to this
Form 1.

9. For the financial statements of BATS FX, Inc., an affiliate of EDGA Exchange,
Inc.please refer to the attaclunent submitted as part of Exhibit I to this Form 1.
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10. For the financial statementsof Omicron Intennediate Holdings Corp.,an affiliate
of EDGA Exchange, Inc.please refer to the attachment submitted as part of
Exhibit I to this Form 1.

I1. For the financial statements of Omicron Holdings Corp.,an affiliate ofEDGA
Exchange, Inc.please refer to the attaclunent submitted as part of Exhibit I to this
Form 1.

12. For the financial statements of Omicron Acquisition Corp.,an affiliate of EDGA
Exchange, Inc.please refer to the attachment submitted as part of Exhibit I to this
Form 1.

13. For the financial statements of BATS Trading Limited, an affiliate of EDGA
Exchange, Inc. please refer to the attaclunent submitted as part of Exhibit I to this
Form 1.

14. For the financial statements of Chi-X Europe Limited, an affiliate ofEDGA
Exchange, Inc.please refer to the attachment submitted as part of Exhibit I to this
Form 1.
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OATH .OR AFFIRMATION

I, 6|f A Veddth , swear (or affirm) that, to the best of

my knowledge and belief the accompanying financial statement and supporting schedules pertaining to the firm of

Uster+ F<irge ECN Le cl/h/Q - DF Wraik . . , as
of T)4 ei Myr %\ ,20 N , are true and correct. I further swear (or affirm) that

neither the company nor any partner, proprietor, principal officer or director has any proprietary interest in any account ·

classified solely as that of a customer, except as follows:

Title

Notary Public

This report **contains (check all applicable boxes):
E (a) Facing Page.
2 (b) Statement of Financial Condition.

(c) Statement of Income (Loss).
(d) Statement of-Changes in Financial Condition.
(e) Statement of Changes in Stockholders' Equity or Partners' or Sole Proprietors' CapitaL
(f) Statement of Changes in Liabilities Subordinated to Claims of Creditors.
(g) Computation of Net Capital.

0 (h) Computation for Determination of Reserve Requirements Pursuant to Rule 15c3-3.
O (i) Information Relating to the Possession or Control Requirements Under Rule 15c3-3.
O (j) A Reconciliation, including appropriate explanation ofthe Computation of Net Capital Under Rule 15c3-1 and the

Computation for Determination of the Reserve Requirements Under Exhibit A of Rule 15c3-3.
O (k) A Reconciliation between the audited and unaudited Statements of Financial Condition with respect to methods of

consolidation.

8 (1) An Oath or Affirmation.
O (m) A copy ofthe SIPC Supplemental Report.
O (n) A report describing any material inadequacies found to existor found to have existed since the date ofthe previous audit.

**For conditions of confidential treatment of certain portions of this filing, see section 240.17a-5(e)(3).
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Independent Auditor's Report

To the Member of
Direct Edge ECN LLC (d/bla DE Route):

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Direct Edge ECNLLC, (d/bla DE Route) ("DE
Route"), which comprise the statement of financial condition as of December 31,2013, and the related
statements of operations, changes in member's equity and cash flows for the year then ended.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes
the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial statements based on our audit. We conducted
our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America.
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the financialstatements.The procedures selected depend on our judgment, including the assessment of
the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraudor error. In making
those risk assessments, we consider internal control relevant to the Company's preparation and fair
presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing anopinion on the effectiveness of the Company's
internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion.

Opinion

in our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material.respects, the
financial position of DE Route at December 31, 2013, and the results of its operations and its cash flows
for the years then ended in accordance with accounting principles generaliy accepted in the United States
of America.

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP,PricewaterhouseCoopers Center, 300 Madison Avenue, New York, NY1oo17
'n (646) 471 3000, F: (813) 286 6000, www.pwe.com/us
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Other Matter

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements taken as a
whole. The information contained in Supplementary Schedules I and 11is presented for purposes of
additional analysis and is not a required part of the financial statements, but is supplementary information
required by Rule 17a-5 under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934. The information is the responsibility
of management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records
used to prepare the financial statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures
applied in the audit of the financial statements and certain additionai procedures, including comparing and
reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the
financial statements or to the financiaLstatements themselves and other additional procedures, in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, in our opinion,
the information is fairiy stated, in all material respects, in relation to the financial statements taken as a
whole.

February 25, 2014
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Direct Edge.ECN LLC d/bla DE Route
Statement of Financial Condition
December 31,2013

Assets

Cash and cash equivalents $ 5,886,103

Intercompany receivable 4,159,060
Other assets 253,034

Total assets $ 10,298,197

Liabilities and Member's Equity
Liabilities

Payable to brokers and dealers $ 2,891,913

Intercompany payable 253,628
Total liabilities 3,145,541

commitments and contingent liabilities (Note 3)

Members equity

Total member's equity 7,152,656

Total liabilities and membeds equity $ 10,298,197

The accompanying notes are an integral partof these financial statements.
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Direct Edge ECN LLC d/bla DE Route
Statement of Operations
Year Ended December 31,2013

Revenues

Commissions and fees $ 60,375,146
Other revenues 8,851

Total reanues 60,383,997

Expenses
Execution, routing and clearance fees 54,014,590

General, administratie and other 4,128,336

Total expenses 58,142,926

Net income $ 2,241,071

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Direct Edge ECN LLC d/bla DE Route
Statement of Changes in Member's Equity
Year Ended December31,2013

Member's
Equity

Balance, December 31, 2012 $ 12,911,585

Distribution to Parent (8,000,000)
Net income 2,241,071

Balance, December 31, 2013 $ 7,152,656

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

5



Direct Edge ECN LLC d/bla DE Route
Statement of Cash Flows
Year EndedDecember 31,2013

Cash flows from operating activities
Net income $ 2,241,071

Adjustments to reconcile net income to

net cash provided by operating activities
(increase) decrease in operating assets

intercom'pany receivable . 651,661
Other assets (253,034)

. Increase (decrease) in operating liabilities

Payable to brokers and dealers 407,758
intercompany payable (26,194)

Net cash provided by operating activities 3,021,262

Cash flows from financing activities

Distribution to Parent (8,000,000)

Net cash used in financing activities (8,000,000)

Decrease in cash and cash equivalents (4,978,738)

Cash and cash equivalents
Beginning of year 10,864,841

Endofyear $ 5,886,103

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Direct Edge ECN LLC d/bla DE Route
Notes to the Financial Statements
December 31,2013

1. Organization and Description of the Business

Direct Edge ECN, LLC d/bla DE Route (the "Company"), a Delaware limited liability company,
operates as a routing broker-dealer for its affiliate stock exchanges,EDGA Exchange Inc ("EDGA")
and EDGX Exchange Inc ("EDGX"), collectively the "Exchanges", by sending orders to other
market centers for execution in accordance with the Exchanges' member order instructions and
requirements. The Company is registered as a broker-dealer with the Securities and Exchange
Commission ("SEC") and is a member of the Financial Industry Regulatory Authority ("FiNRA"),
National Stock Exchange, Chicago Stock Exchange, CBOE Stock Exchange, Nasdaq Stock
Market, NewYork Stock Exchange, EDGA and EDGX. The Company's sole member is Direct
Edge Holdings, LLC (the "Parent").

. On August 26, 2013, the Parent announced a definitive merger agreement with BATS Global
Markets. As a result of the merger, the former members of the Parent wili own 30% of the
combined company to be created as a result of the merger. See Foótnote 7, Subsequent Events,
for further information

2. Significant Accounting Policies

Use of Estimates
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles
in the United States of America requires managemerit to make estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amounts of assets and liabliitles and disclosure of contingent assets and
liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and
expenses during th.ereporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash andcashequivalents represent short-term investments with an original maturity of less than
90 days. The carrying amount of $3,697,370 approximates its fair value due to the short-term
nature of these instruments.

Broker Dealer Activities
The Company records revenue earned from the Exchanges for routing orders to other liquidity
destinations, and related expenses, including execution, clearance fees andactivityremittance
fees, on a trade date basis. Any amount receivable at December 31, 2013 is recorded as
intercompany receivable.

Estimated Fair Value of Financial Instruments

Management estimates that the fair value of financial instruments recognized on the Statement of
Financial Condition (including receivables and payables) approximates their carrying value; as
such financial instruments are short-term innature, bear interest at current market rates or are
subject to frequent repricing.

General, administrative and other
included in general, administrative and other is a monthly charge by an affiliate of the Company,
Direct Edge Inc ("DEl"),for certain allocated expenses paid by DEl. These expenses include
communications, data processing and depreciation which are allocated based orivolume of
transactions. These expenses also include employee compensation and benefits, professional fees

7



Direct Edge ECN LLC d/bla DE Route
Notes to the Financial Statements
December 31, 2013

and other expenses which are allocated based on expenses which specifically relate to the
Company.

Income Taxes
The Company does not provide for income taxes in the accompanying financial statements. Under
current federal, state and local tax.laws,a limited liability company with only one member is
disregarded as an entity separate from its owner, unless an election has been made to classify the
entity as an association taxable as a corporation. As the Company has not made such an election,
the Company is disregarded as an entity separate from its owner and is not subject to federal,
state, or local income taxes.

3. Commitments and Contingent Liabilities

ASC 460-10, "Guarantees", requires the disclosure of the representations and warranties that the
Company enters into which may provide general indemnifications to others. The Company, in its
norrnal course of business, may enter into legal contracts that contain a variety of these
representations and warranties which provide general indemnifications. The Company's maximum
exposure under these arrangements is unknown,as this would involve future claims that may be
against the Company that have not yet occurred. However, based on its experience, the
Company's management expects the risk of loss to be remofe.

The Company,from time to time, may be subject to examinations and inquiries by various
regulatory and self-regulatory bodies. In the opinion of management, based on consultation with
legal counsel,any adverse outcome with regard to these potential matters would not likely have a
material adverse effect on the results of operations or the financial position of the Company.

4. Related Party Transactions

The Company holds an expense sharing agreement with DEl, where DEI charges the Company for
overhead expenses including employee compensationandbenefits,communicationand data
processing,depreciation,professional fees, and other.

During 2013, these expenses amounted to:

Communications and data processing $ 2,950,626
Depreciation 644,211
Professional fees 306,252
Employee compensation and benefits • 216,536
Other 10,711

$ 4,128,336

At December 31, 2013, the amount payable to DEI of $253,628 is included within the intercompany

payable balance.

The Company receives revenue from EDGA and from EDGX for routing services performed.on
behalf of EDGA and EDGX, respectively, based upon such routing and clearing fees. In addition,

8



Direct Edge ECN LLC d/bla DE Route
Notes to the Financial Statements
December 31, 2013

the Company is also required to pay route fees to EDGA for orders received from EDGX and
routed to EDGA and required to pay route fees to EDGX for orders received from EDGA and
routed to EDGX. During 2013, commissions and fees earned for routing services performed on
behalf of EDGA and EDGX amounted to $33,251,720 and $16,051,452, respectively. During 2013,
route fees accrued or paid to EDGA and EDGX amounted to $728,311 and $11,678,164,
respectively, in addition, the Company has $8,230,487 of actlyity remittance fees earned from the
Exchanges included in commissions and fees on the Statement of Operations. At December 31,
2013, $4,159,060 is receivable by the Company from EDGA and EDGX for routing services, route
fees and activity remittance fees and is included in intercompany receivablè on the Statement of
Financial Condition.

The Company routes transactions to three member affiliates. These affiliates either rebate or
charge fees to the Company for these transactions. During 2013, transaction fees paid or accrued
amounted to $184,528 and rebates received or accrued amourited to $1,180,022.

5. Financial instruments with Off-Balance Sheet Risk and Concentrations of Credit Risk

The Company clears all of its securities transactions through a clearing broker on a fully disclosed
basis. Accordingly, substantially all of the Company's credit exposures are concentrated with the
clearing broker and the Exchanges.Additionally, pursuant to the terms and conditions between the
Company and the clearing broker, the clearing broker has the right to charge the Company for
losses that result froma counterparty's failure to fulfill its obligations. The Company has the ability
to pursue collection from or pedormance of the counterpany. The Company's policy is to monitor
the credit standing of the clearing broker and all counterparties with which it conducts business.

As the right to charge the Company has no maximumamount and applies to all trades executed
through the clearing broker, the Company believes there is no maximum amount assignable to this
right. At December 31,2013, the Company has recorded no liabilities with regard to the right.

The Company maintains its cash and cash equivalents in financial institutions, which at times, may
exceed federally insured limits. The Company has not experienced any losses in such accounts.

6. Net Capital Requirement

As a registered broker-dealer and a FINRA member firm, the Company is subject to the SEC's
Uniform Net Capital Rule (the "Rule") which requires the maintenance of minimum net capital. The
Company has elected to use the basic method, permitted by the Rule, which requires that the
Company maintain net capital equal to the greater of $100,000 or 6 2/3% of aggregate
indebtedness, as defined.

At December 31, 2013, the Company had net capital of $2,740,562 which was $2,530,859 in
excess of its required net capital of $209,703.

9



Direct Edge ECN LLC d/bla DE Route
Notes to the Financial Statements
December 31,2013

7. Fair Value Assets and Liabilities

Fair Value Measurement-Fair value is defined as the price that would be received to sell an asset
or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the
measurement date. The authoritative guidance around fair value establishes a framework for
measuring fair value that includes a hierarchy used to classify the inputs used in measuring fair
value. The hierarchy prioritizes the inputs to valuation techniques into three levels. The level in the
fair value hierarchy within which the fair value measurement falls is determined based on the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement. The levels of the fair value
hierarchy are as follows:

Level 1-Fair value is based on unadjusted quoted prices in active markets that are accessible to
the Company for identical assets or liabilities. These generally provide the most reliable evidence
and are used to measure fair value whenever available. Active markets are defined as having the
following characteristics for the measured asset/liability: (i) many transactions, (ii) current prices,
(iii) price quotes not varying substantially among market makers, (iv) narrow bid/ask spreads and
(v) most information publicly avaliable.

Level 2-Fair value is based on significant inputs,other than Level 1 inputs, that are observable for
the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly, for substantially the full term of the asset or liability
through corroboration with observable market data. Level 2 inputs include quoted market prices in
active markets for similar assets and liabilities, quoted market prices inmarkets that are not active
for identical or similar assets or iiabilities, andother market observable inputs.

Level 3-Fair value is based on at least one or more significant unobservable inputsfor the asset
or liability. The inputs reflect the Company's assumptions about the inputs market participants
would use in pricing an.asset or liability.

The Company did not have any assets or liabilities carried at fair value; however, it is required by
US GAAP to disclose the fair value of certain financial instruments that are not carried at fair value.
For the following financial instruments the carrying amount equals or approximates fair value: cash
and cash equivalents, intercornpany receivable and payable and payable to brokers and dealers.

The Company'sLevel 1financialinstruments represent cash and cash equivalents.

The Company'sremainingfinancialinstrumentswouldbecharacterizedas Level2.

8. Subsequent Events

The Company has performed an evaluation of subsequent events through February 25, 2014,
which is the date the Financial Statements were issued and identified the following matter. On
January 31, 2014, as discussed in Footnote 1,the Parent received approval from the Securities
and Exchange Comrníssion and completed the merger with BATS Global Markets.

10



Direct Edge ECN LLC d/bla DE Route
Computation for Net Capital Under SEC Rule 15c3-1
December 31, 2013 Supplementary Schedule I

Computation of Net Capital
Total member's equity $ 7,152,656
Nonallowable assets and deductions and charges
Nonallowable assets

intercompany receivable 4,159,060
Other assets 253,034

Tentatie net capital 2,740,562

Net capital $ 2,740,562

Computation of basic net capital requirement

Aggregate indebtedness
Payable to brokers and dealers $ 2,891,913
Intercompany payable 253,628

Total aggregate indebtedness $ 3,145,541

Net capital requirement

(the greater of $100,000 or 6 2/3% of
aggregate indebtedness) $ 209,703

Excess net capital $ 2,530,859

Percentage of aggregate indebtedness to net capital 114.78%

11



Direct Edge ECN LLC d/bla DE Route
Computation for Determination of
Reserve Requirements Under SEC Rule 15c3-3
December 31,2013 Supplementary Schedule il

The Company has claimed exemption from SEC Rule 15c3-3 under paragraph (k)(2)(ii) of that Rule.
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Independent Auditor's Report

To the Members of

Direct Edge Holdings LLC

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Direct Edge Holdings
LLC, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial condition as of December 31, 2013,
and the related consolidated statement of operations, consolidated changes in members' equity

and cashflows for the year then ended.

Management's Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated
financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control

relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of consolidated financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements based on our
audits. We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the consolidatéd financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on our
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, we
consider internal control relevant to the Company's preparation and fair presentation of the
consolidated financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the

Company's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, aswell asevaluating the overallpresentation of the
consolidated financial statements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is

sufficient and appropriate to provide abasis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all
material respects, the financial position of Direct Edge Holdings LLC at December 31, 2013, and
the results of their operatiöns and their cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

March 17,2014

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP,PricewaterhouseCoopers Center, 300 Madison Avenue, New York, NY10017

T: (646) 471 3000, F: (813) 286 6000, www.pwc.com/us



Direct Edge Holdings LLC and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Statement of Financial Condition
December 31, 2013

(Dollars in thousands)
Assets

Cash and cash equivalents $ 77,700
Receivables from brokers, dealers and clearing organizations 48,485
Fixed assets, at cost, less accumulated depreciation and amortization of $31,253 14,264
Goodwill 34,783
Deferred tax asset 36,546

Intangible assets 1,139
Other assets 3,655

Total assets $ 216,572

Liabilities and Members' Equity
Liabilities

Payable to brokers and dealers $ 2,892
Rebates payable 12,954
Activity remittance fees payable 35,151
Loans payable 6,000
Accrued compensation 10,472
Accrued expenses and other liabilities 7,013

Totai liabilities $ 74,482

Commitments and contingerit liabilities (Note 6)

Members' equity

Total members' equity 142,090

Total liabilities and members' equity $ 216,572

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.

2



Direct Edge Holdings LLC and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Statement of Operations
Year Ended December 31, 2013

(Dollars in thousands)
Revenues
Commissions and fees $ 557,425
Market data 51,877

Connectiuty and member fees 25,951
Other reenues 40

Total rewnues $ 635,293

Expenses
Rebates 366,108

Execution, routing and clearance fees 157,705
Communications and data processing 26,334

Employee compensation and benefits 31,799
Depreciation and amortization 6,861
Professional fees 15,067

Other 4,887

Total expenses $ 608,761

Net income before taxes $ 26,532

Income taxes 11,712

Net income $ 14,820

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.
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Direct Edge Holdings LLC and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Members' Equity
Year Ended December 31, 2013

(Dollars in thousands)
Balance, December 31, 2012 (as reported) $ 127,621

Adjustment to Members' Equity, January 1, 2012 (see note 9) (1,859)
Balance, January 1, 2012 (as revised) $ 125,762
Additional paid in capital - stock options 1,508
Net income 14,820

Balance, December 31, 2013 $ 142,090

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.
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Direct Edge Holdings LLC and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
Year Ended December 31, 2013

(Dollars in thousands)
Cash flows from operating activities
Net income $ 14,820

Adjustments to reconcile net income to
net cash provided by operating activities

Depreciation and amortization 6,861
.Deferred tax asset 3,297

Stock Option amortization 1,508·

(increase) decrease in operating assets
Receivable from brokers, dealers and clearing organizations (1,760)
Other assets . - 3,055

increase (decrease) in operating liabilities
Rebates payable (634)
Accrued compensation 3,637

Payable to brokers and dealers 408
Activity remittance fees payable (724)
Accrued expenses and other liabilities 3,445

Netcash provided by operating activities $ 33,913

Cash flows from investing activities
Purchases of fixed assets (9,231)

Net cash used in investing activities $ (9,231)

Cash flows from financing activities

Loan payable (19,000)

Net cash used in financing activities $ (19,000)

Increase in cash and cash equivalents $ 5,682

Cash and cash equivaients

Beginning of year $ 72,018

End of year $ 77,700

SUPPLEMENTALDISCLOSURES

Cash payments for income taxes, net of refunds, were $2.3 million and for interest was $325 thousand for
the year ended December 31, 2013.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.
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Direct Edge Holdings LLC and Subsidiaries
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2013

1. Organization and Description of the Business

Direct Edge Holdings LLC, (the "Company"), a Delaware limited liability company, is the parent
company of two wholly owned operating subsidiaries, Direct Edge ECN, LLC,d/bla DE Route
("DER") and Direct Edge Inc ("DEl"). The Company has no business operations beyond its status
as a holding company.

DEI is the parent company of two wholly owned subsidiaries, EDGA Exchange Inc ("EDGA") and
EDGX Exchange Inc ("EDGX"), collectively the "Exchanges". EDGA and EDGX independently

operate as national securities exchanges. DEl's operations are limited to facilitating connectivity
and member services to both EDGA and EDGX.

DER operates as a routing broker-dealer for the Exchanges, by sending orders to other market
centers for execution in accordance with the Exchanges' member order instructions and

requirements. DER is registered as a broker-dealer with the Securities and Exchange Commission
("SEC") and is a member of the Financial Industry Regulatory Authority ("FINRA"), National Stock
Exchange, Chicago Stock Exchange, CBOE Stock Exchange, Nasdaq Stock Market, New York
Stock Exchange, EDGA and EDGX.

On August 26, 2013, the Company announced a definitive merger agreement with BATS Global
Markets. As a result of the merger, the former members of the Company will own 30% of the
combined company to be created as a result of the merger. See Footnote 14, Subsequent Events,
for further information.

2. Significant Accounting Policies

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles
in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amountsof assetsand liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and
liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and

expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents represent short-term investments with an original maturity of less than

90 days andcash. The carrying amountof suchcash equivalentsapproximatestheirfair value due
to the short-term nature of these instruments. As of December 31, 2013 the balance principally
consist of shod term investments and cash held of $75.5 million.

Broker Dealer and Exchange Activities
Commissions and fees earned and related expenses, including execution and clearance fees and
rebates are recorded on a trade date basis. Fees include commissions and fees earned and trade

expenses incurred by DER and the Exchanges. The Company pays Section 31 fees to the
Securities and Exchange Commission for supervision and regulation of securities markets. This
regulatory sales fee is in tum charged to the members of the Exchanges. Any amount receivable
at December 31, 2013 is recorded as activity remittance fee receivable.

Market Data Revenue
As members of the Consolidated Tape Association and the Unlisted Trading Privileges plan, the

Cornpany earns market data revenue for displaying its quotes and repoding its trades. Revenue is
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Direct Edge Holdings LLC and Subsidiaries
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2013

based on the Company's quote and trade reporting activity. Revenue is recorded for the period
transaction data is provided on an accrual basis.

Estimated Fair Value of Financial Instruments

Management estimates that the fair value of financial instruments recognized on the consolidated
Statement of Financial Condition (including receivables, payables and accrued expenses)

approximates their carrying value; as such financial instruments are short-term in nature, bear
interest at current market rates or are subject to frequent repricing.

Depreciation and Amortization
Furniture and fixtures, computer hardware, software, equipment and intangible assets are being

depreciated on a straight-iine basis over their estimated useful lives. Leasehold improvements are
amortized using the straight-line method over the term of the lease or the estimated useful lives of
the improvements. In accordance with the provisions of subtopic 350 of the FASB Accounting
Standards Codification for Intangibles-Goodwill and other ("ASC 350"), the Company capitalizes
cedain costs associated with the development of internal use software at the point at which the

conceptual formulation, design and testing of possible software project alternatives have been
completed. The Company capitalizes employee compensation and related benefits incurred from
the commencement of the preliminary software project stage. Once the product is ready for its
intended use,such costs are amodized on a straight-line basis over three years. The Company
reviews the amounts capitalized for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amountsof the assets may not be recoverable.

Goodwill and intangible Assets
The Company applies the provisions of ASC 350, which requires that goodwill and intangible
assets with an indefinite useful life no longer be amortized, but instead, be tested for impairment

annually or when an event occurs or circumstances change that signify the existence of
impairment.

Income Taxes
The Company is a Limited Liability Company, and as such, does not file consolidated federal
income tax returns. The Company pays state income taxes in select states where business
activities require such payments.

DEI is established as a corporation and files a consolidated federal income tax return. For state
and local incometax returns,DEIfollows state guidelines,filing eithera consolidatedreturn,or
filing separate returns for DEI and each of its subsidiaries.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the future tax consequences attributable to
differences between the DEl consolidated financial statement carrying amounts of existing assets
and liabilities and their respective tax bases. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using
enacted tax rates expected to applyto taxable income in the years in which those temporary
differences are expected to be recovered or settled. Valuation allowances are established when
necessary to reduce deferred tax assets to an amount that, in the opinion of management, is more
likely than not realizable.

The Company has adopted guidance on accounting for uncertainty in income taxes. This guidance
describes how uncertain tax positions should be recognized, measured, presented and disclosed in
the consolidated financial statements to determine whether the tax positions meet the "more-likely-
than-not" criteria to be sustained by the applicable tax authority. Tax benefits related to positions
that do not meet the "more-likely-than-not" threshold would not be recognized in the current year.
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DireCt Edge Holdings LLC and Subsidiaries
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2013

The Company policy is to accrue interest and penalties associated with unrecognizable tax benefits
in income tax expense in the Statement of Operations, and the corresponding liability in income
taxes payable or income taxes receivable, net in the Statement of Financial Condition.

Stock-Based Compensation

Employees of the Company participate in a stock option plan (the "Stock Plan"). The purpose of
the Stock Pian is to provide long-term incentive compensation, in the form of the Company's stock-
related awards, to employees.

Stock-based compensation is measured based on the grant date fair value of the awards. These
costs are amortized over a period of 5 years.

Certain employees of the Company also participate in a phantom stock unit plan ("PSUP"). The
PSUP was created to provide a long term incentive to employees who started at an early stage of
the Company. No grants have been made under this plan since June, 2010. Terms of the PSUP
are such that payment for units granted occurs only upon a change in control, as defined by the
plan. Given the contingent nature of the PSUP, expense related to the settlement of units will be
recorded only upon a change in control.

In 2011 and 2012, subsequent and related to two extraordinary distributions to members, the

Company established Restricted Cash Awards for PSUP unit holders under the terms and
conditions of the Restricted Cash Award Agreements. Such awards established deferred cash

payment to be paid to each PSUP unit holder pursuant to the terms and conditions of the
Restricted Cash Award Agreements.

3. Receivables from Brokers, Dealers and Clearing Organizations

Receivable from brokers,dealers and clearing organizations primarily represents net commissions
of $21.8 million,market data receivables of $12.6 million, regulatory sales fee receivable of $10.4
million, and connectivity and member fees receivable of $3.6 million.

4. Goodwill and intangible Assets

At December 31, 2013, the Company had goodwill of $34.8 million. Goodwill of $11.0million
resulted from the purchase of DER by its initial investor and $23.8 million resulted from the

purchase of the ISE on December 23, 2008.

At December 31, 2013, the Company had intangible assets with definitive lives of $1.1 million, net
of $336 thousand of amortization. The net intangible assets resulted from the purchase of
memberships to the Consolidated Tape Association and Unlisted Trading Privileges plan.

Under ASC 350, goodwill and intangible assets with indefinite lives are tested for impairment, at a
minimum, on an annual basis, or when an event occurs or circumstances change that signify the
existence of impairment. During 2013, the Company tested the goodwill and intangible assets for
impairment based on its assessment of fair value of the reporting unit in comparison to its book
value and concluded that there was no impairment.
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Direct Edge Holdings LLC and Subsidiaries
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2013

5. Fixed Assets

(Dollars in thousands)
Fixed assets comprise the following:

Computer software $ 22,999
Computer hardware 13,423
Equipment 1,397
Leasehold improvements 6,255
Fumiture and fixtures 1,443

$ 45,517

Less: Accumulated depreciation and amortization (31,253)

Tota fixed assets $ 14,264

6. Commitments and Contingent Liabilities

The Company and itssubsidiaries, from time to time, may be subject to examinations and inquiries
by various regulatory and self-regulatory bodies. In the opinion of management, based on
consuitation with legal counsel, any adverse outcome with regard to these potential matters would
not likely have a material adverse effect on the results of operations or the financial position of the
Company.

DEl has an obligation under a sublease agreement for office space with Knight Capital Group
("KCG") extended to 2021 with certain rental increases included within the agreement. Aggregate
annual rent for office space at December 31, 2013 is listed below:

(Dollars in thousands)
2014 $ 1,078
2015 1,078

2016 1,097
2017 1,191
2018 1,191
2019 and later years 2,581

$ 8,216

Occupancy expense for 2013 was $1.3 million and is included in other expenses on the Statement
of Operations.

9



Direct Edge Holdings LLC and Subsidiaries
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2013

The Company has an obligation under a lease agreement for certain hardware extended to 2013.
Aggregate annual lease expense for the hardware at December 31, 2013 is listed below:

(Dollars in thousands)
2014 $ 5,279
2015 3,409
2016 2,089
2017 642

$ 11,419

Expenses relating to lease agreements for hardware for 2013 were $6.0 million and included within
communication and data processing on the Statement of Operations.

7. Loans and Credit

in December 2012, DEI entered into a credit agreement with the Bank of Montreal. The agreement

provides DEI a revolving credit line of up to $50.0 million until December 7, 2015, the date of
termination. The Company is a guarantor of this agreement. Terms include the ability for DEl to
choose amongst interest rate options, which each have varying repayment and other terms. In
addition to the interest assessed on the borrowed amount, an additional fee will be assessed on
the unused portion of the $50.0 million available as well as a non-refundable upfront fee of 0.5% on
the amount of Commitment at the closing date, regardless of whether any credit is use. Under the
conditions of the agreement, the Company must maintain a leverage ratio of under 2:1 and a fixed

charge covered ratio of at least 1.3:1. During 2013, interest expense related to the revolver,
included in the other expense line on the Statement of Operations, was $355 thousand and is
contained in the other expense line on the Statement of Operations. At December 31, 2013, the

Company had $6.0 million in loans outstanding, the leverage ratio was .2:1and the fixed charge
ratio was 3:1.

8. Employee Benefit Plans

Employees of DEl are eligible to participate in a 401(k) profit sharing plan (the "Plan"). In July of
2009, the Company became its sole administrator. Under the terms of the Plan, the Company is
required to make contributions to the Plan equal to 100% of the contributions made by each
participant,up to certainlimits. For2013, the total expense recognized by the Company and
included in Employee compensation and benefits on the Statement of Operations with respect to
the Plan was approximately $752 thousand.

In August 2010, the Company created a Stock Option Plan, in which employees receive stock units
as a portion of their total compensation. Awards vest, with certain restrictions on exercisability,
over the earlier of three years or upon a change in control. Subject to vesting, awards are
exercisable on the earliest of a change in control, an iPO or five years from the grant date. Awards

are rEloiiger exercisable ten years from the grant date, and are canceled if employment is
terminated before the end of the relevant vesting period.

The Company measures compensation cost related to the option awards based on the estimated
fair valueof the Company atthe date of grant and utilizing assumptions such as the risk free rate
and expected life of the option of 6.75 years to determine the grant price per option. For 2013, the
total expense recognized by the Company and included in Employee compensation and benefits
on the Statement of Operations with respect to the Stock Option Plan was $1.5 million. The
following table summarizes share activity during 2013:
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DireCt Edge Holdings LLC and Subsidiaries
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2013

Weighted
Average Grant

No. of Options Date Fair Value

Outstanding at December 31, 2012 485,365 $ 16.73

Granted - -

Exercised - -

Surrendered (9,941) 17.14

Outstanding at December 31, 2013 475,424 $ 16.72

There is $2.8 million of unamortized compensation related to the unvested awards outstanding at
December 31, 2013. The cost of these unvested awards is expected to be recognized over the

weighted average remaining life of 1.8 years.

9. Income Taxes

The Company is a multiple-member limited liability company that is treated as a partnership for
federal income tax purposes and, accordingly, is not subject to federal and state corporate income
taxes. The domestic corporate subsidiaries of the Company, DEl and the Exchanges, are subject
to federal, state and local income taxes and will be included in the filing of a consolidated federal
income tax return with combined and separate state and local income tax returns being filed.

The Company's provision for income taxes consists of the following:

(Dollars in thousands)
Current
Federal $ 5,947
State 2,468
Total Current Tax $ 8,415

Deferred
Federal $ 2,670
State 627
Total DeferredTax $ 3,297
Provision for income Tax . $ 11,712

The difference between the Company's consolidated effective tax rate of 44% and the U.S.federal

statutory tax rate of 35% is primarily due to state and local income taxes net of federal benefit, non-

deductible transactions costs and income earned at the partnershipievel that is not subject to
income tax.

DEl has an effective tax rate of 49% and DEH, including DER, has an effective tax rate of 0%.
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Direct Edge Holdings LLC and Subsidiaries
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2013

The Company's deferred tax assets/(liabilities) included in Deferred tax assets on the Statement of
Financial Condition are as follows:

(Dollars in thousands)
Deferred Tax Assets

Goodwill $ 39,014

Stock Compensation 2,224
Other 1,377

Total Deferred Tax Assets $ 42,615

Deferred Tax Liabilities
Goodwill $ (2,569)

Intemally demloped software (1,628)
Fixed Assets (1,872)

Total Deferred Tax Liabilities $ (6,069)

Net DeferredTax Asset $ 36,546

Based on its recent history of cumulative eamings, the Company believes that its net deferred tax
assets are more likely than not realizable and accordingly has not recorded a valuation allowance.

During 2013, the Company revised the members' equity beginning balance to properly reflect the
deferred tax balance related to fixed assets. This error was not material to previously issued
financial statements.

As for liabilities for uncertain tax positions, the Company had no liabilities at the beginning of 2013
and no liabilities for uncertain tax liabilities at year-end. The Company and its subsidiaries file

, income tax returns in the U.S, federal jurisdiction and various state jurisdictions. The Company has

opentax years for U.S.federal income tax and various state filings for calendar tax years ending
2010 and forward. DEl is currently under examination by the New York State tax authorities for

their corporate tax returns for the years ended 2010 through 2012.

10. Related Party Transactions

On July 23, 2007, the Company entered into a Transition Services Agreement ("TSA") with KCG.
Under the terms of the agreement, KCG would provide certain technological and administrative
services, in addition to facility overhead, to the Company as it transitioned from a wholly-owned
subsidiary to a majority-owned subsidiary. The contract remained in effect as the Company
transitioned from a majority-owned subsidiary to an independent company, In 2013, expense
related to the TSA amounted to $204 thousand which is included in the relevant line items on the
consolidated Statement of Operations. In addition to the TSA, the Company holds a sublease

agreement for office space with Knight Equity Markets, an affiliate of KCG, which amounted to $1.1
million during 2013 and is included within other expenses on the consolidated Statement of
Operations.

Prior to the merger with the ISE LLC, the Company entered into a "Regulatory Senrices

Agreement." The agreement commenced with the close of the acquisition of the ISE by the
Company and was terminated in August 2013. Under the terms of the agreement, the ISE LLC
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2013

would provide certain regulatory oversight services to the ISE Stock Exchange. In November
2010, the Company entered into a "Mutual Services Agreement," under which the ISE and the
Company charge each other for mutually provided technological services. During 2013, expense
related to the Regulatory Services agreement and Mutual Services Agreement was $521 thousand,
and $1.7 million respectively. The Company charged the ISE $650 thousand in relation to the
Mutual Services Agreement.

During 2013, three members of the Company were also members of the Exchanges. During 2013,
commissions earned, net of rebates paid or accrued to those members, amounted to $28.9 million
and membership and connectivity fees amounted to $5.0 million.

The Company routes transactions to three member affiliates. These affiliates either rebate or
charge fees to the Company for these transactions. During 2013 rebates received or accrued, net
of transaction fees paid or accrued amounted to $989 thousand.

11. Financial instruments with Off-Balance Sheet Risk and Concentrations of Credit Risk

DER clears all of its securities transactions through a clearing broker on a fully disclosed basis.

Accordingly, substantially all of DER's credit exposures are concentrated with the clearing broker
and the Exchanges. Additionally, pursuant to the terms and conditions between DER and the
clearing broker, the clearing broker has the right to charge DER for losses that result from a
counterparty's failure to fulfill its obligations. DER has the ability to pursue collection from or
performance of the counterparty. DER's policy is to monitor the credit standing of the clearing
broker and all counterparties with which it conducts business.

As the right to charge DER has no maximum amount and applies to all trades executed through the
clearing broker, the Company believes there is no maximum amount assignable to this right. At
December 31, 2013, the Company has recorded no liabilities with regard to the right.

The Company maintains its cash and cash equivalents in financial institutions, which at times, may
exceed federally insured limits. The Company has not experienced any losses in such accounts.
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Direct Edge I-ioldings LLC and Subsidiaries
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2013

12. Fair Value Assets and Liabilities

Fair Value Measurement-Fair value is defined as the price that would be received to sell an asset
or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the
measurement date. The authoritative guidance around fair value establishes a framework for
measuring fair value that includes a hierarchy used to classify the inputs used in measuring fair
value.The hierarchy prioritizes the inputs to valuation techniques into three levels. The level in the
fair value hierarchy within which the fair value measurement falls is determined based on the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement. The levels of the fair value
hierarchy are as foilows:

Level 1-Fair value is based on unadjusted quoted prices in active markets that are accessible to

the Company for identical assets or liabilities. These generally provide the most reliable evidence
and are used to measure fair value whenever available. Active markets are defined as having the
following characteristics for the measured asset/liability: (i) many transactions, (ii) current prices,
(iii) price quotes not varying substantially among market makers, (iv) narrow bid/ask spreads and
(v) most information publicly available.

Level 2-Fair value is based on significant inputs, other than Level 1 inputs, that are observable for
the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly, for substantially the full term of the asset or liability
through corroboration with observable market data.Level 2 inputs inciude quoted market prices in
active markets for similar assets and liabilities, quoted market prices in markets that are not active
for identical or similar assets or liabilities, and other market observable inputs.

Level 3-Fair value is based on at least one or more significant unobservable inputs for the asset

or liability. The inputs reflect the Company's assumptions about the inputs market participants
would use in pricing an asset or liability.

The Company did not have any assets or liabilities carried at fair value; however, it is required by
US GAAP to disclose the fair value of certain financial instruments that are not carried at fair value.
For the followingfinancial instruments the carrying amount equals or approximates fair value: cash
and cash equivalents, receivable and payable to brokers and dealers, rebates payable, activity
remittance fees payable, accrued compensation expenses and other liabilities and long-term debt.

The Company'sLevel 1 financial instruments represent cash and cash equivalents.

The Company'sremainingfinancial instrumentswould becharacterized as Level 2.
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13. Net Capital Requirements

DER is a member of FINRA and is subject to the Uniform Net Capital Rule ("Rule 15c3-1") of the
SEC, which requires the maintenance of minimum net capital, as defined, equal to the greater of
$100,000 or 6 2/3% of aggregate indebtedness, as defined. At December 31, 2013, Direct Edge
had net capital of $2.7 million which was $2.5 million in excess of the amount required of $210
thousand. The percentage of aggregate indebtedness to net capital was 114.78%.

DER is exempt from the SEC Rule 15c3-3 under Paragraph (k)(2)(ii) because all transactions are
cleared through another broker-dealer on a fully disclosed basis.

14. Subsequent Events

The Company has performed an evaluation of subsequent events through March 17, 2014, which
is the date the consolidated Financial Statements were issued and identified the following matters.
On January 31, 2014 the Company received approval from the Securities and Exchange
Commission and completed the merger with BATS Global. Markets. As a result of the transaction,
all outstanding options granted under the Stock Plan, all units granted under the PSUP and all
restricted cash awards associated with the PSUP were fully vested and exercised. The expense
associated with the exercising of the Stock Plan options, the PSUP units and the restricted cash
awards was $2.8 million, $20.2 million and $2.9 million, respectively. Additionally, the credit

agreement with the Bank of Montreal, see footnote 7,was terminated.
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Direct Edge Inc

For the Twelve Months Ending December 31, 2013

December, 2012 January, 2013 February, 2013 March, 2013 April, 2013 May, 2013 June, 2013 July, 2013 August, 2013 September, 2013 October, 2013 November, 2013 December, 2013

$12,342,944.05 $4.300,855.90 $11,980,258.31 $8,613,261.79 $3,922,536.20 $10,169,604.11 $13,919,937.97 $10,900,145.52 $14,363,716.17 $20,620,527.16 525,731,845.80 $27,641,479.11 529,364,065.63
2,318,678.57 2.590,354.81 3,131,159.54 3,194,010.33 2,613,370.13 2,671,927.90 3,044,638.68 3,229,043.39 2,422,811.98 3,220,453.66 3,062,802.51 3,743,908.32 3,525,393.51

11,795,967.93 11,565,954.31 11,479,561.58 11,569,028.94 11,629,227.15 11,500,082.60 11,428,381.46 12,533,843.75 12,927,381.66 13,824,532.18 13,880,591.13 14,376,720.23 14,264,337.76
10,953,201.99 10,953,201.99 10,953,201.99 10,953,201.99 10,953,201.99 10,953,201.99 10,953,201.99 . 10,953,201.99 10,953,201.99 10,953,201.99 10,953,201.99 10,953,201.99 10,953,201.99

1,236,983.03 1,228,791.10 1,220,599.17 1,212,407.24 1,204,215.31 1,196,023.38 1,187,831.45 1,179,639.52 1,171,447.59 1,163,255.66 1,155,063.73 1,146,871.80 1,138,679.87
8,862,781.90 11.242,034.74 6,345,290.20 12,160,344.95 18,333,279.10 9,596,670.95 6,451,645.82 10,953,840.54 11,616,753.28 7,326,294.78 6,936,724.40 6,270,309.02 5,980,123.43

41,701,746.00 41,701,746.00 41,701,746.00 41,701,746.00 41,701,746.00 41,701,746.00 41,701,746.00 41,701,746.00 41,701,746.00 41,701,746.00 41,701,746.00 41,701,746.00 36,545,821.00
81,171.33 91,421.32 91,504.95 93,252.62 93,601.67 95,017.63 95,174.72 95,781.67 6,064.74 . 5,453.22 5,980.21 6,888.65 7,418.86

3,347,651.71 3,407,303.87 3,062,745.98 3,070,452.24 2,256,690.76 4,741,081.04 4,385,503.81 4,483,402.72 4,141,753.87 3,218,420.78 3,359,220.79 3,393,439.41 3,348,335.60

92,641,126.51 87,081,664.04 89,966,067.72 92,567,706.10 92,707,868.31 92,625,355.60 93.168,061.90 96,030,645.10 99,304,877.28 102,033,885.43 106,787,176.56 109,234,564.53 105.127,377.65

3learingOrganizations 26.70
14,605.26 11,250.00 8,022.47 11,772.47 15,522.47 15,000.00 18,750.00 6,352.52

25,000,000.00 12,500,000.00 12,500,000.00 12,500,000.00 10,500,000.00 8,000,000.00 8,000,000.00 6,000,000.00 6,000,000.00 6,000,000.00 6,000,000.00 6,000,000.00 6,000,000.00
7,719,156.27 2,635,534.31 4,692,493.10 6,502,779.79 7,833,319.64 9,134,030.28 8,803,530.51 12,058,304.03 13,564,305.28 14,732,667.19 18,008,247.15 18.871,205.16 17,485,237.97

32,719,156.27 15,135,534.31 17,192,493.10 19,002,779.79 18,333,319.64 17,148,635.54 16,814,780.51 18,066,326.50 19,576,104.45 20,748,189.66 24,023,247.15 24,889.955.16 23,491,590.49

48,615,899.55 59,745,899.55 59,875,899.55 60,005,899.55 60,135,899.55 60,265,899.55 60,395,899.55 60,525,899.55 60,645,899.55 60,765,899.55 60,885,899.55 61,005,899.55 61,123,796.55
11,306,070.69 12,200,230.18 12,897,675.07 13,559,026.76 14,238,649.12 15,210,820.51 15,957,381.84 17,438,419.05 19,082,873.28 20,519,796.22 21,878,029.86 23,338,709.82 20,511,990.61

59,921,970.24 946,129.73 72,773,574.62 73,564,926.31 74,374,548.67 75,476,720.06 76,353,281.39 77,964,318.60 79,728,772.83 81,285,695.77 82,763,929.41 84,344,609.37 81,635,787.16

92,641,126.51 87,081,664.04 89,966,067.72 92,567,706.10 92,707,868.31 92,625,355.60 93,168,061.90 96,030,645.10 99,304,877.28 102,033,885.43 106,787,176.56 109,234,564,53 105,127,377.65



Direct Edge Inc

For the Twelve Months Ending December 31, 2013

December, 2012 January, 2013 February, 2013 March, 2013 April, 2013 May, 2013 June, 2013 July, 2013 August, 2013 September, 2013 October, 2013 November, 2013 December, 2013

oount 5.00

11,587,824.74 3,288,261.87 11,686,242.58 8,319,476.50 3,628,915.51 9,876,147.70 13,626,818.12 10,607,012.12 14,070,750.41 20,327,719.07 25,435,639.10 27,356,770.93 28,798,996.80
755,119.31 - 1,012,594.03 294,015.73 293.785.29 293,620.69 293,456.41 293,119.85 293,128.40 292,965.76 292,808.09 296,206.70 284,708.18 565,068.83

12,342,944.05 4,300,855.90 11,980,258.31 8,613,261.79 3,922,536.20 10,169,604.11 13,919,937.97 10,900,145.52 14,363,716.17 20,620,527.16 25,731,845.80 27,641.479.11 29,364,065.63

(341,374.25) (299,122.02) (224,288.95) (177,397.32) (226,263.47) (256,122.13) (281,122.13) (288,125.86) (332,268.95) (346,666.96) (427,542.47) (267,454.59) (138,203.83)
2,525,706.80 2,822,870.90 3,181,081.45 3,247,918.14 2,773,027.67 2,777,685.39 3,102,133.57 3,222.153.01 2,392,957.45 3,430,712.15 3,379,383.82 3,891,355.88 3,585,343.48

135,330.26 67,590.13 141,955.06 204,341.06 67,590.13 146,490.13 219,752.73 291,141.73 362,530.73 86,815.71 61,368.40 70,414.27 28,800.00
3,874.51 3,874.51 37.270.69 (75,992.84) 3,874.51 3,874.51 3,874.51 3,874.51 (407.25) 49,592.76 49,592.76 49,592.76 49,453.86

(4,858.75) (4,858.71) (4,858.71) (4,858.71) (4,858.71)

2,318,678.57 2.590,354.81 3,131,159.54 3,194,010.33 2,613,370.13 2,671,927.90 3,044,638.68 3,229,043.39 2,422,811.98 3,220,453.66 3,062,802.51 3,743,908.32 3,525,393.51

vements Less Depreciation:

7,457,568.85 7,480,131.03 7,642,532.47 7,978,262.78 8,036,858.19 8,139,628.15 8,169,767.75 8,733,512.09 9,191,246.12 10,471,934.26 10,493,918.26 10,513,061.61 10,532,363.76
7,437,476.74 7,437,476.74 7,445,476.74 7,468,972.95 7,603,342.95 7,613,856.75 7,613,856.75 8,255,943.61 8,255,943.61 8,255,943.61 8,255,943.61 8,378,051.60 8,378,051.60

907,919.57 907,919.57 907,919.57 907,919.57 947,996.43 947,996.43 947,996.43 947,996.43 1,035,396.93 1,029,996.93 1,029,996.93 1,029,996.93 1,029,996.93
177,181.32 253,320.07 253,320.07 264,629.87 304,214.15 304,214.15 304,214.15 304,214.15 304,214.15 304,214.15 355,108.22 366,705.56 366,705.56

5,112,151.42 5,112,865.42 5,119,397.42 5,119,397.42 5,198,913.83 5,261,802.99 5,278,219.69 5,494,960.25 5,673,175.16 5,870,141.18 6,143,871.37 6,218,451.56 6,254,567.81
1,245,670.21 1,245,670.21 1,245,670.21 1,246,871.75 1,248,057.61 1,249,278.75 1,366,136.99 1,377,062.35 1,389,988.54 1,394,904.57 1,394,904.57 1,394,904.57 1,444,445.57

12,042,738.40 12,233,125.73 12,423,513.06 12,655,563.40 12,859,838.40 13,064,113.40 13,330,234.23 13,555,124.50 13,780,014.77 13,931,264.29 14,164,801.79 14,398,340.20 14,621,152.70
(89.19) 0.81 0.81 0.81 0.61 0.81 0.81 0.81 (10,992.00)

(3,700,639.19) (3,885,084.04) (4,047,311.79) (4,234,625.64) (4,416,473.17) (4,599,859.48) (4,777,026.16) (4,972,691.07) (5,180,268.98) (5,411,234.52) . (5,646,834.24) (5,880,559.52) (6,125,902.34)

(1,895,098.20) (1,898,054.57) (1,898,054.57) (1,898,054.57) (1,898,054.57) (1,898,054.57) (1,898,054.57) (1,898,054.57) (1,898,054.57) (1,923,303.93) (1,927,700.71) (1,949,596.55) (1,976,949.10)
(6,383,325.17) (6,447,304.75) (6,496,190.38) (6,550.161.20) (6,605,553.81) (6,663,090.22) (6,718,296.17) (6,793,503.55) (6,868,512.73) (6,939,237.95) (7,013,112.15) (7,085,511.94) (7,156,203.69)

(884,349.03) (892.513.11) (899,887.12) (908,051.20) (909,148.20) (910,281.76) (911,378.76) (912,512.32) (916,117.98) (914,075.70) .(917,681.36) (921,170.71) (924,776.33)
(145,377.31) (149,677.85) (153,562.21) (158,054.76) (163,052.73) (168,217.30) (173,215.27) (178,379.85) (181,522.82) (184,516.06) (188,523.06) (192,591.28) (196,232.43)

(2,226,888.02) (2,292,320.10) (2,351,481.40) (2,416,981.39) (2,482,444.88) (2,551,128.91) {2,617,779.35) (2,690,745.81) (2,766,092.34) (3,017,683.76) (3.103,586.82) (3,186,312.14) (3,226,459.21)
(555,732.47) (569,915.62) (582,726.18) (596,921.95) (610,673.69) (624,898.65) (640,035.76) (655,809.91) (671,740.77) (686,795.90) (756,124.32) (772,491.53) (790,004.77)

(8,670,275.72) (8,846,720.95) (9,006,090.84) (9,186,774.62) (9,361,629.89) (9,542,313.66) (9,723,295.02) (9,910,309.08) (10.097,323.15) (10,280,464.40) (10,472,291.54) (10,657,930.76) (10,856,909.97)

1,877,035.72 1,877,035.72 1,877,035.72 1,877,035.72 1,877,035.72 . 1,877,035.72 1,877,035.72 1,877,035.72 1,877,035.72 1,923,445.41 2,078,892.58 2,723,372.63 2,890,491.67

11,795,967.93 11,565.954.31 11,479,561.58 11,569,028.94 11,629,227.15 11,500,082.60 11,428,381.46 12,533,843.75 12,927,381.66 13,824,532.18 13,880,591.13 14,376,720.23 14,264,337.76

ization:

10,953,201.99 10,953,201.99 10,953,201.99 10,953,201.99 10,953,201.99 • 10,953,201.99 10,953,201.99 10,953,201.99 10,953,201.99 10,953,201.99 10,953,201.99 10,953,201.99 10,953.201.99

10.953,201.99 10.953,201.99 10,953,201.99 10,953,201.99 10,953,201.99 10,953,201.99 10,953,201.99 10,953,201.99 10,953,201.99 10,953,201.99 10,953,201.99 10,953,201.99 10,953,201.99

ed Amortization:
33.810.00 33,810.00 33,810.00 33,810.00 33,810.00 33,810.00 33,810.00 33,810.00 33,810.00 33,810.00 33,810.00 33,810.00 33,810.00

a (5,447.07) (5,634.90) (5,822.73) (6,010.56) (6,198.39) (6,386.22) (6,574.05) (6,761.88) (6,949.71) (7,137.54) (7,325.37) (7,513.201 (7,701.03)
(113,530.36) (117,445.20) (121,360.04) (125,274.88) (129,189.72) (133,104.56) (137,019.40) (140,934.24) (144,849.08) (148,763.92) (152,678.76) (156,593.60 (160,508.44)

31,395.00 31,395.00 31,395.00 31,395.00 31,395.00 31,395.00 31,395.00 31,395.00 31,395.00 31,395.00 31,395.00 31,395.00 31,395.00
704,672.00 704,672.00 704,672.00 704,672.00 704,672.00 704,672.00 704,672.00 704,672.00 704,672.00 704,672.00 704,672.00 704,672.00 704,672.00

(5,058.18) (5,232.60) (5,407.02) (5,581.44) (5,755.66) (5,930.28) (6,104.70) (6,279.12) (6,453.54) (6,627.96) (6,802.38) (6,976.80) (7,151.22)
(113,530.36) (117,445.20) (121,360.04) (125,274.88) (129,189.72) (133,104.56) (137,019.40) (140,934.24) (144,849.08) (148,763.92) (152,678.76) (156,593.60) (160,508.44)

704,672.00 704,672.00 704,672.00 704,672.00 704,672.00 704,672.00 704,672.00 704,672.00 704,672.00 704,672.00 704,672.00 704,672.00 704,672.00
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Direct Edge Inc

For the Twelve Months Ending December 31, 2013

December, 2012 January, 2013 February, 2013 March,2013 April, 2013 May, 2013 June, 2013 July, 2013 August, 2013 September, 2013 October, 2013 November, 2013 December, 2013

$12,342,944.05 $4,300,855.90 $11,980,258.31 $8,613,261.79 $3,922,536.20 $10,169,604.11 $13,919,937.97 $10,900,145.52 $14,363,716.17 $20,620,527.16 $25,731,845.80 $27,641,479.11 $29,364,065.63
2,318,678.57 2,590,354.81 3,131,159.54 3,194,010.33 2,613,370.13 2,671,927.90 3,044,638.68 3.229,043.39 2,422,811.98 3,220,453.66 3,062,802.51 3,743,908.32 3,525,393.51

11,795,967.93 11,565,954.31 11,479,561.58 11,569,028.94 11,629,227.15 11,500,082.60 11,428,381.46 12,533,843.75 12,927,381.66 13,824,532.18 13,880,591.13 14,376,720.23 14,264,337.76
10,953,201.99 10,953,201.99 10,953,201.99 10,953,201.99 10,953,201.99 10,953,201.99 10,953,201.99 10,953,201.99 10,953,201.99 10,953,201.99 10,953,201.99 10,953,201.99 10,953,201.99

1,236,983.03 1,228,791.10 1,220,599.17 1,212,407.24 1,204,215.31 1,196,023.38 1,187,831.45 1,179,639.52 1,171,447.59 1,163,255.66 1,155,063.73 1,146,871.80 1,138,679.87
8,862,781.90 11,242,034.74 6,345,290.20 12,160,344.95 18,333,279.10 9,596,670.95 6,451,645.82 10,953,840.54 11,616,753.28 7,326,294.78 6,936,724.40 6,270,309.02 5,980,123.43

41,701,746.00 41,701,746.00 41,701,746.00 41,701,746.00. 41,701,746.00 41,701,746.00 41,701,746.00 41,701,746.00 41,701,746.00 41,701,746.00 41,701,746.00 41,701,746.00 36,545,821.00
81,171.33 91,421.32 91,504.95 93,252.62 93.601.67 95,017.63 95,174.72 95,781.67 6,064.74 5,453.22 5,980.21 6,888.65 7,418.86

3,347,651.71 3,407,303.87 3,062,745.98 3,070,452.24 2,256,690.76 4,741,081.04 4,385,503.81 4,483,402.72 4,141,753.87 3,218,420.78 3,359,220.79 3,393,439.41 3,348,335.60

92,641,126.51 87,081,664.04 89,966,067.72 92,567,706.10 92,707,868.31 . 92,625,355.60 93,168,061.90 96,030,645.10 99,304,877.28 102,033,885.43 106,787,176.56 109,234,564.53 105,127,377.65

3learing Organizations 26.70
14,605.26 11 250.00 8,022.47 11,772.47 15,522.47 15,000.00 18,750.00 6,352.52

25,000,000.00 12,500,000.00 12,500,000.00 12,500,000.00 10,500,000.00 8,000,000.00 8,000,000.00 6,000,000.00 6,000,000.00 6,000,000.00 6,000,000.00 6,000,000.00 6,000,000.00
7,719,156.27 2,635,534.31 4,692,493.10 6,502,779.79 7,833,319.64 9,134,030.28 8,803,530.51 12,058,304.03 13,564,305.28 14,732,667.19 18.008,247.15 18,871,205.16 17,485,237.97

32,719,156.27 15,135,534.31 17,192,493.10 19,002,779.79 18,333,319.64 17,148,635.54 16,814,780.51 18,066,326.50 19,576,104.45 20,748,189.66 24,023,247.15 24,889,955.16 23,491,590.49

48,615,899.55 59,745,899.55 59,875,899.55 60,005,899.55 60,135,899.55 60,265,899.55 60,395,899.55 60,525,899.55 60,645,899.55 60,765,899.55 60,885,899.55 61,005,899.55 61,123,796.55
11,306,070.69 12,200,230.18 12,897,675.07 13,559,026.76 14,238,649.12 15,210,820.51 15,957,381.84 17,438,419.05 19,082,873.28 20,519,796.22 21,878,029.86 23,338,709.82 20,511,990.61

59,921,970.24 71,946,129.73 72,773,574.62 73,564,926.31 74,374,548.67 75,476,720.06 76,353,281.39 77,964,318.60 79,728,772.83 81,285,695.77 82,763,929.41 84,344,609.37 81,635,787.16

92,641,126.51 87,081,664.04 89,966,067.72 92,567,706.10 92,707,868.31 92,625,355.60 93,168,061.90 96,030,645.10 99,304,877.28 102,033,885.43 106,787,176.56 109.234,564.53 105,127,377.65
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Direct Edge Inc

For the Month Ending December31, 2013

January, 2013 February, 2013 March, 2013 April,2013 May, 2013 June, 2013 July, 2013 Au9ust, 2013 September, 2013 October, 2013 November, 2013 December, 2013 YTD

Revenues

Commission Revenue:
4040-000-00 Bad Debt Expense (15,000.00) (15,000.00) (35,000.00) (50,000.00) (25,000.00) (25,000.00) (15,000.00) (45,000.00) (15,000.00) (15,000.00) 157,972.27 (1,190,208.88) (1,287,236.39)

Total Commission Revenue (15,000.00) (15,000.00) (35,000.00) (50,000,00) (25,000.00) (25,000.00) (15,000.00) (45,000.00) (15,000.00) (15,000.00) 157,972.27 (1,190,208.66) (1,287,236,39)

Connectlyity and Member Fees:

4060-000-00 Connectivity Revenue 1,901,600.44 1,955,562.89 1,950,133.69 1,948,189.31 2,114,905.65 2,130,793.33 2,362,009.68 2,359,557.74 2,356,329.32 2,282,392.14 2,287,904.32 2,301,362.42 25,950,740.93

Total Connectivity and Member Fee 1,901,600.44 1,955,562.89 1,950,133.69 1,948.189.31 2,114,905.65 2,130,793.33 2,362,009.88 2,359,557.74 2,356,329.32 2,282,392.14 2,287,904.32 2,301,362.42 25,950,740.93

Other income:

4070-000-00 Other income 312.74 3,560.00 1,337.40 5,210.14

Total other Income 312.74 3,580.00 1,337.40 . 5,210.14

Total Revenues 1,886,600.44 1,940,562.89 1,915,133.69 1,898,189.31 2,089,905.65 2,105,793.33 2,347,009.68 2,314,870.48 2,341,329.32 2,270,952.14 2,447,213.99 1,111,153.76 24,668,714.66

Cost of Revenues

Rebates:
5030-000-00 Rebate Expense 14,805.26 3.750.00 3,750.00 3,750.00 3,750.00 (522.47) 3,750.00 3,750.00 . 36,582.79

Total Rebates 14,605.28 3,750.00 3,750.00 3,750.00 3,750.00 (522.47) 3,750.00 3,750.00 38,582.79

Total Cost of Revenues 14,605.26 3,750.00 3,750.00 3.750.00 3.750.00 (522.47) 3,750.00 3,750.00 36,562.79

Gross Margins 1,886,600.44 1,940,562.89 1,915,133.69 1,898.189.31 2,075,300.39 2,102.043.33 2,343,259.68 2,311,120.48 2,337,579.32 2,271,474.61 2,443,463.99 1,107.403.76 24,632,131.89
Gross Margins as a % of Revenues 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 99.30% 99.62% 99.84% 99.84% 99.84% 100.02% 99.85% 99.66% 1198.17%

Flxed Expenses

Compensation and Benefits:
6000-000-00 Allocated Comp and Bt (2,588,398.04) (2,768,270.58) (2,687,837.60) (2,582,507.32) (2,644,208.72) (2,538,446.84) (2,594,227.64) (2,541,696.80) (2,582,385.68) (2,507.069.88) (2,450,467.00) (3,013,414.58) (31,498,930.46)
6000-252-00 Salary Expense - Salet 186,338.45 170,018.84 188,335.89 159,606.70 161,421.70 160,586.70 160,096.70 159,161.70 160,970.12 159,897.50 161,128.32 160,896.70 1,948,457.32
8000409-00 Salary Expense - Open 174,083.40 178,208.38 180,250.05 184,491.72 192,715.00 201,575.06 201,850.06 202,400.06 194,425.06 202,443.90 201,300.06 202.162.56 2,315,905.33
6000-701-00 Salary Expense Accoul 83,750.02 82.179.35 77,918.68 . 77,918.88 82,988.95 81,506.35 77,916.68 77,916.68 77,916.68 73,397.32 66,451.33 77,916.68 937,771.40
6000-713-00SalaryExpense-Admi 124,166.69 124,199.13 124,186.88 124,186.68 124,166.68 124.166.68 124,166.68 124,166.88 124,168.88 124,166.68 124,166.68 124,166.68 1,490,032.62
6000-750-00 Salary Expense - Comi 169.415.03 187,375.02 187,675.02 188,443.77 187,532.13 201,408.36 205,442.74 207.582.35 203.702.11 201.820.86 202,233.98 190,942.23 2,273,573.60

8000-82%0 Salary Expense - IT 804,628.04 815,625.93 797,517.23 795,940.77 816,185.50 818,228.23 817,510.49 829,348.49 823.700.34 824,296.51 798,549.75 811,524.49 9,753,055.77
6004-820-00 Intemat Software Caplo (144,854.00) (144,854.00) (174,875.33) (154,861.10) (154,861.10) (236,527.80) (182,083.33) (182,083.33) (86,500.00) (183,416.67) (183,416.67) (166,979.17) (1,995,312.50)
6005-820-00lntemalSoftwareCapit (45,533.33) (45,533.33) (57,175.0f) (49,413.90) (49,413.90) (29,593.03) (42,806.94) (42,806.94) (64,748.61) (50,120.83) (50,120.63) (55,833.33) (583,099:98)
6010-713-00BonusExpense-Admi 699,998.97 950,000,00 950,000.00 850,000.00 850,000.00 785,000.00 785,000.00 765,000.00 750,000.00 760,000.00 760,000.00 1,275,315.93 10,180,314.90
6011-00%0 Tax/Bene on Bonus 18.000.00 63,000,00 61,000.00 52,000.00 57,000.00 50,000.00 45,000.00 50,000.00 50,000.00 50,000.00 50,000.00 84,403,38 630,403.38
8050-252-00ÉmployerTax-Sales 19,233.94 9.547,89 11,887.38 9,643.26 6,299.33 8,238.59 8,638,49 5,020.19 5,115.97 6,579.26 3,847.97 3,848,29 95,898.56
6050-609-00EmployerTax-Operati 20,062.56 14,960.90 13,524.23 11,119.32 11,218.68 11,435.82 11,189.35 11,195.30 9,688.57 9,375.80 8,486.25 7,409.67 139,624.45
6050-701-00EmployerTax-Accour 9,686.60 6,222.89 5,247.35 4,540.01 4,465.43 3,909.57 3,834.28 3,835.73 3,834.26 3,415.22 3,161.96 2,798.19 54,351.47
6050-713-00EmployerTax-Adminl: 13,161.71 4,855.05 4,848.25 4,607.44 4,804.52 4,384.85 3,597.02 3,596.86 3,110.72 2,300.00 2,299.99 2,298.44 53,680.85
6050-750-00EmployerTax-Compli 19,343.34 9,822.21 9,287.15 8,213.24 9,430.95 9,958.77 8,829.67 8,073.19 7,549.22 6,975.52 6,712.10 4,879.95 109,075.31
6050-820-00EmployerTax-IT 99,301.99 63,143.95 55,806.04 52,388.57 51,702.05 49,364.40 45,899.63 44,250.17 38,982.63 31,519.85 . 25,580.01 23,629.24 581,526.53
8060-252-00401kMatch-Sales 23,084.04 4,754.18 4,970.84 4,683.34 4,883.34 4,683.34 5,433.34 6,083.34 6.333.34 4,212.19 4,318.04 3,825.14 77,062.47
6060-609-00401kMatch-Operatior 26,351.50 8,334.50 8,473.50 8,744.50 9,720.00 9,420.00 8,969.50 9,002.50 7,874,50 8,269.62 7,486.50 6,782.00 119,428.62
6060-701-00401kMatch-Accounlir 6,847.00 2,850.00 3,050.00 3,050.00 3,050.00 3,050.00 1,550,00 1,175.00 800.00 800.00 587.50 375.00 26,984.50

6060-713-00401kMatch-Administr 7,152.50 6,772.79 6,770.84 4,520.84 3,958.34 3,95834 3,958.34 2,958.34 2,225.05 2,058.34 1,158.34 5,251.63 50,743.69
6060-750-00 401k Match - Complian 10,746.34 5,918.66 6,050.00 8,050.00 8,050.00 8,050.00 6,066.50 6,083.00 4,725.00 3,113.78 3,125.00 3,186.72 87,163.00
6060-82000401kMatch-¡T 75,871.35 33,086.50 34,250.97 34,318.05 33,954.88 33,045.80 31,858.96 30,390.29 27,041.51 24,073.64 22,007.26 30,693.98 410,593.21
6070-000-00 Employee insurance 102.742.87 132,783.73 121,968.24 117,337.43 122,338.24 129,596.60 151,412.98 124,547.19 126,544.41 136,412.08 136,445.85 121,027.86 1,523,155.48
6075-000-00 Tultion Reimbursement Expense . 1,895.59 8,096.49 10,170.10 10,479.30 30,641.48
6080-000-00 Stock Option Expense 130,000.00 130,000.00 130,000.00 130,000.00 130,000.00 130,000.00 130,000.00 120,000.00 120,000.00 120,000.00 120,000.00 117,897.00 1,507,897.00

Total Compensation and Benefits 24,998.97 24,999.99 24,999.99 25,000.00 25,000.00 24,999.99 24,999.99 24,999.99 25,000.00 24,999.99 25,000.39 25,000.70 300,000.00



Communications & Data Processing:
8000-000-00 Telephone 24,738.02 23,759.96 24,894.07 24,881.60 27,087.93 26,075.46 25,961.30 24,244.87 26,635.47 25,605.24 25,385.38 26,103.78 305,173.06
8001-000-00 Communications 8,784.19 7,270.05 7,684.54 6,350.27 5,047.94 6,501.19 6,557.99 9,042.73 7,722.93 6,816.72 5,381.82 7,159.83 84,300.20
8002-000-00 Market Data Fees 66,312.55 66,312.55 80,720.41 64,125.00 84,220.19 84,173.88 80,425.13 108,384.81 82,750.01 107,855.46 89,990.99 111,615.67 1,026,666.65
8003.000-00 Connectivity Une 378,570:18 325,108.18 380,767.18 508,800.95 459,934.01 397,293.27 440,079.01 472,752.40 526,564.78 452,823.63 812,570.50 434.164.80 5,389,428,87

80044)00-00 Data Center Facilities 608,645.36 892,341.83 735,801.84 744,273.60 744.215.85 746,295.90 744,447.97 754,876.23 751,562.86 750,645.05 617,417.99 611,006.28 8,701,330.74
8005-000-00 office Facilities 3,217.08 31,202.66 13,143.31 22,574.67 23,289.97 23,016.30 19,861.27 17,619.55 25,063.86 25,710.02 22,850.99 27,032.74 254,382.42
8006-000-00 Computer Hardware 609,546.09 603,622.28 (1,135,467.10) 10,781.90 23,563.51 10,780.65 17,004.06 9,274.44 19,527.67 20,584.58 10,787.31 23,180.67 223.188.06
8007-000-00ComputerHWMaint/Si 32,746.36 11,696.82 83,943.84 36,430.78 45,584.43 43,814.67 43,246.28 48,038.99 . 29,246.92 45,718.33 96,526.69 77.851.39 592,843.50

-6008-0004)0 Software 152,592.99 159,876.59 139,595.33 144,788.16 179,614.62 178,452.07 190,286.38 145,717.28 152,697.44 183,458.49 191,347.76 205,497.27 2,023,924.38
8009-000-00 SW Maint/Sup 269,293.18 (44,801.23) 114,898.56 70,006.01 102,602.58 98,839.59 98,749.05 116,774.40 124,281.19 89,952.94 69,046.68 80,111.68 1,189,954.63
8010-000-00 Allocated Communicali (2,054.426.00) (1,978,350.09) (2,012,598.30) (2,097,500.66) (2,176,908.11) (2,072,517.03) (2,146,496.91) (2,137,179.58) (2,156,635.60) (2,119,599.55) (2,174,879.00) (2,005,158.69) (25,134,247.52)
8011-000.00 Production Security Monitoring 1,760.42 6,385.60 10,249.83 10.249.83 8,385.60 6,385.60 9,875.60 7,385.56 7,432.18 7,432.15 7,432.16 80,774.51
8012-000-00 Hartfwere Lease Expense 1,680,428.72 554,437.88 573,497.25 550,888.47 573,492.66 522,800.29 503,196.93 503,196.93 526,340.81 494,002.56 8,462,282.50

Total Communications & Data Proct 100,000.00 100,000.00 100,000.00 99,999.99 100,000.00 100,000.02 99,999.99 100,000.01 100,000.02 100,000.00 99,999.87 100,000.10 1,200,000.00

Depreciation and Amortization:

8506000-00Depr-Hardware 184,444.85 162,227.75 187,313.85 181,847.53 183,388.31 177,166.68 195,684.91 207,577.91 254,896.19 235,599.72 223,319.93 245,342.82 2,438,788.45
8501-000-00 Depr- Datacenter Hare 2,956.37 (21,160.33) 4,396.78 21,895.84 27,352.55 35.441.21
8502-000-00Depr-Software 63,979.58 48,885.63 53,970.82 55,392.61 57,536.41 55,205.95 75,207.38 75,009.18 68,226.39 73,874.20 72,399.79 70,691.75 770,379.89
8503-000-00Depr-NetworkEquiprr 8,164.08 7,374.01 8.164.08 1,097.00 1,133.56 1,097.00 1,133.56 3,605.68 3,357.72 3,605.68 3,489.35 3,605.62 45.827.30
8504400-00Depr-TelephoneEqu[[ 4,300.54 3,884.38 4,492.55 4,997.97 5,164.57 4,997.97 5,164.58 3,142.97 2,993.24 4,007.00 4,068.22 3,841.15 .50,855.12
8505-0000Depr-Leaseholdlmprc 65,432.08 59,161.30 65,499.99 65,463.49 68,684.03 66,650.44 72,966.48 75,348.53 249,665.42 85,903.06 82,725.32 40,147.07 997,645.19
8506-000-00Depr-FumitureandFi: 14,183.15 12,810.56 14,195.77 13,751.74 14,224.96 15,137.11 15,774.15 15,930.86 15.055.13 69,328.42 16,367.21 17,513.24 234,272.30
8507-000-00Depr-IntemallyDevek 176,445.23 159,389.89 180,683.78 174,855.27 180.683.77 180,981.36 187,014.06 187,014.07 185,839.17 191,827.14 185,639.22 198,979.21 2,189,132.17
8510-000.00 Allocated Depreciation (528,097.81) (461.905.43) (522,512.76) (505,597.54) (519,005.54) (509,428.44) (561,117.02) (575,819.11) (766,864.88) (676,733.92) (618,097.00) (615,465.16) (6,860,644.59)
6590-000-00 Amortization EDGA UT 187.83 187.83 187,83 187.83 187.83 187.83 187.83 187.83 187.83 187.83 187.83 187.83 2,253.96
8591-000-00 Amortization EDGA CT 3,914.84 3,914.84 3,914.84 3,914.84 3,914.84 3,914.84 3,914.84 3,914.84 3,914.84 3,914.84 3,914.84 3,914.84 46,978.08

8592-000-00 Amortization EDGX UT 174.42 174.42 174.42 174.42 174.42 174.42 174.42 174.42 174.42 174.42 174.42 174.42 2,093.04
8593-000-00 Amortization EDGX CT 3,914.84 3,914.84 3,914.84 3,914.B4 3,914.84 3,914.84 3,914.84 3,914.84 3,914.84 3,914.84 3,914.84 3,914.84 46,978.08

Totai Depreciation and Amortization (0.00) 0.00 0.01 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.01 (0.00) 0.00 (0.01) (0.19) 0.18

Occupancy and Equipment Rentals:
9500-000-00 Rent Expense (0.01) (0.02) 0.03

Total Occupancy and Equipment Rentals (0.01) (0.02) 0.03

Professional Fees:
7500-000-00 Allocated Professional (904,053.03) (877,496.29) (704,232.01) (1,045,948.99) (1,123,828.61) (928,517.55) (1,862,428.83) (2,104,467.21) (1,668,949.87) (1,378,656.27) (1,217,863.00) (1,250,997.98) (15.067,439.64)
7520-000-00 Legaf Fees 25,967.09 28,912.58 8,538.07 68,589.25 40,012.05 64,954.22 395,000.00 (354,218.77) 60,251.90 97,614.47 18,403.99 30,000.00 484,022.65
7520-055-00Legai-Brazii 17,000.00 7,000.00 13,000.00 2,226.53 6,000.00 15,881.17 .30,000.00 29,891.48 21,711.36 (22,149.81) 40,854.53 8,577.81 189,792.87
7530-000-00 Regulatory Fees 265,000.17 235,686.17 253,375.17 331,815.15 418.884.57 . 352,198.57 330,154.57 384,221.57 321,382.57 307,772.57 312,777.57 474,298.51 3,985,347.16
7540-000-00 Recruiting Fees 50,000.00 70,000.00 26,507.80 (12,068.93) 60,000.00 60,000.00 62,500.00 76.845.41 20,000.00 35,250.00 449,034.28
7550-000-00Consuffing-IT 180,583.33 288.434.10 188,418.87 321,807.78 272,087.29 211,416.66 312,966.88 226,420.84 221,750.00 175,785.85 210,405.80 255,947.08 2,824,022.28
7551-000-00 Consulting - Finance at 68,779.00 51,239.00 18,564.00 28,932.82 27,238.90 42,968.58 516,479.70 36,379.02 37.538.90 22,797.13 24,578.91 29.954.35 903,448.31
7552-000-00 Consulting Legal/Comt 45,000.00 58,125,13 27,000.00 20,196.31 48,254.29 22,934.75 22,257.00 (30,974.48) 14,813.59 4,967.38 60,348.76 30,436.38 321,359.11
7553-055-00 Consulting - Brazil 55,386.66 (28,366.66) (5.899.18) 21,300.62
7554-000.00Sirategicinitiatives 179.17 2,020,798.54 680,113.88 561.816.41 309,051.49 162,780.79 3,734,720.28
7560-000-00 Payroll Processing Fee 11,878.38 2,008.50 3,228.70 6,009.10 4,029.18 5.724.48 1,666.25 2,997,45 3,000.56 8,687.79 3,549.11 2,540.84 55,318.32
7570-000-00 Board Member Comoei 75,671.98 33,494.02 38,333.00 91,281.98 52,209.00 50,462.28 73,904.44 71,638.93 108,493.33 123,367.79 76,493.33 87,732.37 883,082.45
7510-000-00 Audit and Tax Fees 128,627.25 122,598.80 131,270.60 187,359.01 227.500.00 101,978.86 117,500.00 (353,833.59) 179,893.78 97,996.70 161,599.50 133,500.00 1,235,990.91

Total Professional Fees (0.00) 0.01 (0.00) 0.01 0.01 (0.00) 0.01 0.01 (0.00) 0.01 (0.01) (0.05)

Business Development
7000-000-00 Allocated Bus Dev (141,329.86) (147,011.28) (93,886.60) (71,334.84) (96,335.70) (165,312.86) (121,371.10) (88,390.38) (98,562.70) (158,749.10) (139,558.00) (104,753.72) (1,426,596.14)
7011-252-00SalesT&E-Airfare/Tra 1,401.20 4,159.82 5,037.95 3,586.54 2.439.45 7,979.85 8,489.84 5,413,96 5,109.28 5,086.10 12,492.60 5,485.36 66,681.55
7012-252-00SalesT&E-CarServic 7,370.86 1,984.94 9,455.82 1,038.45 969.13 11,615.04 9,786.68 7,874.52 1,990.95 8,230.96 1,509.83 12,842.52 74.649.70
7013-252-00SalesT&E-Parking 49.75 130.00 253.00 280.00 117.00 470.00 102.00 142.00 29.00 337.52 324.00 2,234.27
7014-252-00 Sales T&E - Client Entertainment (Events) 2,272.00 10,687.29 8,000.00 9,542.80 27,506.72 9,243.57 1.908.50 1,537.30 282.26 70,980.44
7015-252-00 SalesT&E - Client Enti 5,020.68 9,454.21 7,217.59 7,120.72 8,021.33 7,281.80 8,971.21 4,823.18 7,217,08 7,803.38 11,832.00 7,229.58 89,992.76
7017-252-00 Sales T&E - Business Func/Conv 2,015.00 3,069.00 2.024.00 799.00 561.75 1,374.68 6,234.18 9,060.00 11,120.75 36,258.38
7030-000-00 Charity Events and Donations 15,000.00 15.000.00
7040-000-00 Market/Poduct Research 20,000.00 20,000.00
7040-055.00 Market Research - Bra; 10,000.00 10,000.00 10,000.00 10,000.00 10,000.00 10,000.00 10,000.00 (8.309.22) 10,000.00 10,000.00 5.000.00 (1,666.00) 85,024.78
7100-000.00 Advertising 6,800.00 6,800.00
7100-055-00 Marketing/PR Brazil 8,000.00 29,187.50 (13,187.50) 8,000.00 8,000.00 8,000.00 8,000.00 8,000.00 8,000.00 8,000.00 8,875.00 8,000.00 96,875.00
7101-00000 Promotionai 39,612.57 9.966.97 4.204.73 2,138.54 18,296.72 5,318.27 8,494.99 10,885.94 7,586.29 23,561.38 2,866.95 13.961.25 144,890.60
7102-000-00 Sponsorship 49,000.00 40,500.00 26,000.00 8,500.00 22,000.00 46,500.00 18.000.00 1,310.00 6,041.67 58,083.33 48,083.33 30,583.33 354,601.66



7103-000-00PublicRelations 10,588.24 24,088.24 10,588.17 11.830.00 11,859.95 32,159.11 13,428.60 16,362.64 11,808.45 11,452.00 16,394.50 10,172.50 180,532.40
7104-000-00 Marketing Materials 3,040.58 3,542.56 10.932.34 1,708.33 4,596.33 2,360.44 3,917.26 3,944.34 14,775.05 10,618.77 3,608.99 4,389.52 67,434.51
71054)00-00 Webslie 6,997.50 2,347.50 21,236.25 25.687.50 6,150.00 3,450.00 65,888.75
7106-252-00T&E-Marketing 298.22 2,778.82 402.48 555.96 183.89 31.00 2,040.29 142.15 22.00 2,270.39 4,237.33 923.11 13,885.62
7010-252-00SalesT&E-Hotel 4,663.97 1,888.79 2,849.00 1,864.90 3,610.74 3,743.96 1,535.11 2.727.24 5,926.48 4,928.13 1,387.42 35,105.74

Total Business Development (0.01) 0.00 (0.00) (0.01) 0.00 (0.01) (0.00) (0.01) (0.01) (0.01) 0.44 (0.38)

Other Expenses:
9000-000.00 Allocated Other (135,786.50) (99,158.64) (121,326.84) (114.662.22) (124,862.24) (125,482.34) (102,848.42) (165,435.22) (126,681.90) (182,878.18) (201,014.00) (250,280.12) (1.750,416.62)
9002-000-00 Bank Fees 104.81 193.52 857.02 355.68 503.82 403.57 258.45 169.56 311.90 166.38 157.44 158.18 3,442.53
9004-000-00 Misc Expense 3,316.25 7,860.14 1,963.83 1,394.31 53,199.70 10.547.32. (6,804.98) 11,870.67 8,490.49 35,089.80 (1,486.74) 59,349.99 187,790.78
9005-000-00 General Insurance Exp 43,881.22 31,996.39 31,996.39 31,996.39 31,996.39 31,996.39 31,996.39 31,996.39 31,996.39 10,202.46 33,658.17 33,658.17 377,371.14
9006-000-00 Office Expense 10,862.20 5,311.77 9,499.97 16,597.15 6,841.98 3,890.30 4,946.06 5,185.42 10,236.13 19,381.51 33,566.77 12,193:51 138,512.77
9007-000-00 Postage & Freight 3,296.27 1,516.77 1,977.82 2,463.80 1,496.25 1,019-18 738.42 970.16 2,557.86 2,512.49 1,723.49 . 6,338.93 26,609.24
9010-000-00 Training - Corporate 5,377.50 2,523.10 11,469.75 3,904.75 3,530.75 3,399.75 2,190.58 15,929.75 13,689.75 13,492.40 - 75,526.08
9010-252-00 Training - Sales 1,500.00 (19,800.00) (18,300.00)
9010-609-00Training-Operations 225.00 2,558.38 5,250.00 3,780.00 5,940,50 1,413.00 2,490.00 19,183.73 7,185.00 48,025.61
9010-701-00 Training - Accounting/Finance 115.30 500.00 1,772.00 2,387.30
9010-713-00Training-Administratic 6,726.09 1,304.75 (1,909.50) 100.00 2,938.82 249.00 1,637.84 11,044.80
9010-750-00 Training - Compliance/I 553.33 3,773.92 977.74 458.33 458.33 458,33 1,708.33 2,358.63 1,005.79 (971.93) 10,737.00 13.404.69 34,922.49
9010-820-00Training-IT 5,925.23 7,591.67 6,220.00 2,499.00 10,133.25 12,591.49 15,082.54 8,020,10 13,840.01 3,851.90 8,673.00 8,185.00 102,813.19
9011-055-00 T&E - Strategy 9,983.36 410.00 14,471.82 4,886.00 57.96 534.09 115.24 1,827.62 67.05 28,278.94 2,310.43 93.10 83,033.61
9011-252-00T&E-Sales 73.00 219.14 494.13 1,036.52 447.08 897.99 1,321.91 478.49 961.13 1,692.54 1,527.41 1,401.21 10.550.55
9011-809-00T&E-Operations 3,642.71 2,780.15 1,167.38 321.53 5,459.84 4,914,24 2,480.44 1,726.40 5,356.90 4,428.10 1,474.25 6,784.26 40,536.20
9011-701-00 T&E - Accounting/Final 543.88 24.68 195.00 109.30 285.09 3.508.12 77.01 909.00 206.73 5.858.79
9011-713-00T&E-Administration 3,453.40 2,103.80 5,009.66 2,197.11 2,241.33 8,434.24 2,833.58 4,535.14 2,514.57 13,846.18 30,432.39 7,168.38 84,787.78
9011-750430T&E-Compliance/Legi 2,117.82 1,784.34 3,040.10 5,136.30 5,018.64 3,875.76 3,364.04 6,411.79 1,791.44 1,557.52 12,287,23 8,119.62 52,504.60
9011-820-00T&E-(T 3,208.34 3,774.76 11,005.89 13,548.77 18,699.50 13,784.70 6,139.55 9,368.29 8,386.92 12,494.49 6,899.95 13,893.27 121,202.43
9012-000-00 Good Deeds Charitable 6,250.00 8,250.00 6,250.00 6,250.00 6.250.00 6,250.00 6,250.00 6,250.00 5,250.00 6,250.00 6,250.00 6,250.00 75,000.00
9013-000-00 Dues, Subscriptions, P 31,623.60 19,729.14 17,852.61 17,097.90 (29.656.18) 15,939.49 23,754.99 17,380.69 21,408.72 23,103.31 18,722.28 20.077.27 195.013.82
9016-000-00 Other Chartiable Contributions 50,000.00 5,000.00 55,000.00
9001-000-00 Company Holiday Party Expense 1,925.13 15,000.00 40,075.78 57,000.91

Total Other Expenses (0.01) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 (0.01) (0.01) 0.55 (0.52)

Total Fixed Expenses 124,998.95 125,000.00 125,000.00 124,999.99 125,000.00 125,000.00 125,000.00 125,000.00 125,000.00 124,999.97 125,001.03 125,000.06 1,500.000.00

Pre-Tax Income 1,761,801.49 1.815.562.89 1,790,133.69 1,773,189.32 1,950,300.39 1,977,043.33 2,218,259.68 2,188,120.48 2,212,579.32 2,146,474.64 2,318,462.96 982,403.70 23,132,131.89

Net Interest:
9600-000-00 Interest Expense 50,000.00 30,000.00 35,000.00 30.220.96 27,850.00 27,500.00 25,216.68 23,952.25 41,104.17 40,000.00 35,000.00 (10,367.09) 355,278.97

Total Net Interest 50,000.00 30,000.00 35,000.00 30,220.96 27,650.00 27,500.00 25,218.68 23,952.25 41,104.17 40,000.00 35,000.00 (10,387.09) 355,278.97

Pre-Tax Income 1,711,601.49 1,785,562.89 1,755,133,69 1,742,968.36 1,922.650.39 1,949.543.33 2,193.041.00 2,162,168.23 2,171,475.15 2,106,474.64 2.283.482.96 992.770.79 22,776,852.92

Income Taxes:
9110-000-00 Federal Income Tax 817.442.00 1,068,118.00 1,093,782.00 1,063,346.00 950,479.00 1,202,982.00 712,003.79 517,714.00 734,552.21 748,241.00 822,783.00 3,819,490.00 13,570,933.00

Total Income Taxes 817,442.00 1,088,118.00 1,093,782.00 1,063,346.00 950,479.00 1,202,982,00 712,003.79 517,714.00 734.552.21 748,241.00 822,783.00 3,819,490.00 13,570,933.00

Net Incomel(Loss) 894,159.49 697.444.89 661,351.69 679,822.36 972,171.39 746,581.33 1,481,037.21 1,844,454.23 1,436,922.94 1,358,233.64 1,460,679.96 (2,828,719.21) 9,205,919.92
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EDGA inc

For the Month Ending December 31, 2013

January, 2013 February,2013 March, 2013 April.2013 May, 2013 June, 2013 July, 2013 August, 2013 September, 2013 October, 2013 November, 2013 December, 2013 YTD

Revenues

Commission Revenue 6,624,651.65 6,830,196.74 6,155,362.89 6,578,118.58 6,335,715.15 8,194,240.15 5,774,412.96 4,97B.301.60 4,694,421.80 5,397,420.32 4,748,569.73 4,831,576.29 $69,140,987.65
Market Data 832,364.17 1,074,337.35 1,113,567.23 1,012,267.09 1,009,936.53 1,079,108.45 1,026,007.21 933,487.35 990,358.26 788,488.99 757,736.65 880,512.00 11,496,171.28
Other Income 5,000.00 12,500.00 17,500.00

Total Revenues 7,457,015.82 7,904,534.09 7,288,930.12 7,590,385.67 7,345,651.68 7,273,348.60 6,800,420.17 5,916,788.95 5,684,780.06 6,183,909.31 5,504,306.38 5,724,588.29 80,654,659.14

Cost of Revenues

Routing Fees 3,434,441.00 3,153,937.00 2,649,394.00 2,690,416.00 2,708,645.00 2,384,987.00 2,583,162.00 2,473,850.00 2,273,216.00 2,855,961.00 2,489,331.00 2,820,547.00 32,277,887.00
Clearing 81,890.00 84,918.00 82,717.00 79,573.00 80,775.00 84,548.00 79,593.00 80,971.00 80,482.00 76,677.00 77,689.00 84,000.00 973,833.00
Rebates 1,419,076.29 1,760,745.70 1,797,798.14 1,897,946.03 1,715,502.71 1,370,392.66 1,161,863.23 679,135.41 659,510.61 727,064.57 577,367.93 575,442.58 14.341,845.86
Olhar Expense 1,668.56 329.44 168.00 2,166.00

Total Cost of Revenues 4,935,407.29 4,999,600.70 4,529,909.14 4,669,603.59 4,504,922.71 3,820,257.10 3,824,618.23 3,233,956.41 3,013,376.61 3,659,702.57 3,124,387.93 3,279,989.58 47,595,731.86

GrossMargins 2,521,608.53 2,904,933.39 2,739,020.98 2,920,782.08 2,840,728.97 3,453,091.50 2,975,801.94 2,682,832.54 2,671,403.45 2,524,206.74 2,379,918.45 2,444,598.71 33,058,927.28
GrossMargins as a % of Revenues 33.82% 36.75% 37.68% 38.48% 38.67% 47.48% 43.78% 45.34% 46.99% 40.82% 43.24% 42.70% 495.73%

Flxed Expenses

Compensation and Benefits 1,281,699.02 1,371,635.29 1,331,418.80 1,278,753.66 1,309,604.36 1,258,723.32 1,284,613.82 1,258.348.40 1,278,692.83 1.241,034.94 1,212,734.0Ò 1,535,940.00 15,641,198.44
Communications & Data Processing 599.300.05 701,579.12 692,423.46 713,783.36 631,261.72 624,390.95 644,086.82 604,958.33 608,309.61 570,879.51 599,311.00 540,633.00 7,530.916.93
DepreciationandAmortization 173,243.96 178,029.70 194.181.72 188,819.41 170,813.48 172,357.83 188,790.69 165,260.61 276,441.55 220,894.49 195,322.00 181,959.00 2,321,914.42
Oct:upancy and Equipment Rentals 50,930.48 50,930.48 50,930.48 50,930.48 67,388.88 55,970.48 54,962.48 55.500.08 54,562.40 82,466.65 55,260.00 57,176.00 667,008.69
Professional Fees 438,109.85 424,831.48 338,199.34 509.057.83 547.997.64 450,342.11 917,297.75 1,038,316.94 820,558.27 875,411.47 595,015.00 625,456.00 7,360,593.68
Business Development 70,664.93 73.505.64 46,943.30 35,687.42 48,167.85 82,658.43 60,685.55 44,195.19 49,281.35 79,374.55 69,779.00 52,377.00 713,298.21
Other Expenses 67,893.25 49,579.32 60,663.42 57,331.11 62,431.12 62,741.17 51,424.21 82,717.58 63,340.95 91,439.09 100,733.57 125,237.85 875,532.64

Total Fixed Expenses 2,681,841.54 2,848,091.03 2,714,760.52 2,832,343.27 2,837,445.03 2,705,182.29 3,201,861.32 3,289,297.13 3,151,188.96 2.941,520.70 2,828,154.57 3,118,778.85 35,130.463.21

Pre-Tax Income (160,233.01) 56,842.36 24,260.46 88.438.81 3,283.94 747,909.21 (226,059.38) (566,464.59) (479,783.51) (417,313.96) (448,236.12) (674,180.14) (2,071,535.93)

Pre-Tax Income (160,233.01) 56,842.36 24,260.48 88,438.81 3,283.94 747,909.21 (226,059.38) (586,464.59) (479,783.51) (417,313.96) (448,236.12) (674,180.14) (2,071,535.93)

Net Incomel(Loss) (160,233.01) 56,842.36 24,260.46 88,438.81 3.283.94 747,909.21 (228,059.38) (586,464.59) (479,783.51) (417,313.96) (448,236.12) (674,180.14) (2,071,535.93)



EDGA Inc

For the Month Ending December31, 2013

January, 2013 February,2013 March, 2013 April, 2013 May, 2013 June, 2013 July, 2013 . August, 2013 September, 2013 October, 2013 November, 2013 December, 2013 YTD

Revenues

Commission Revenue:

4010-000-00 Matched Revenue - EE 2,811,063.00 3,298,239.60 3,088,682.31 3,439,719.62 3,190,363.29 3,441,378.74 3,028,163.08 2,270,537.13 2,170,980.82 2,470,653.36 1,962,218.97 2,005,211.65 33,177,209.57
4020-000-00RoutedRevenue-EDC 3,812,228.05 3,530.199.69 3,054,617.47 3.136,514.15 3,139,515.24 2,749,099.27 2,741,764.28 2,705,872.92 2,523,131.79 2,926,642.22 2,773,152.61 2,806,879.90 35,899,417.59
4025-000-00 Late Fee Revenue 1,360.60 1,757.45 12,063.11 1,884.81 5,836.62 3,762.14 4,485.60 2,091.55 309.19 124.74 11,200.15 19,484.74 64,360.70

Total Commission Revenue 6,624,651.65 6,830,196.74 6,155,382.89 6,578,118.58 6.335.715.15 6.194,240.15 5.774,412.96 4,978,301.60 4,694.421.80 5,397,420.32 4,746,569.73 4.631,578.29 69,140,987.86

Market Data:
4030-000-00 Market Data Revenue 832,364.17 1,074.337.35 1,113.567.23 1,012,267.09 1,009,936.53 1,079,108.45 1,026,007.21 933,487.35 990,358.26 788,488.99 757,736.65 680,512.00 11,496,171.26

Totat Market Data 832,364.17 1,074,337.35 1,113,567.23 1,012,267.09 1,009,936.53 1,079,108.45 1,026,007.21 933,487.35 990,358.26 786,488.99 757,736.65 880,512.00 11,496.171.28

Other Income:
4070-000-00 Other Income 5,000.00 12.500.00 17,500.00

Totat Other Income 5,000.00 12,500.00 17,500.00

Total Revenues 7,457,015.82 7,904.534.09 7,268,930.12 7,590,385.67 7.345,651.68 7,273,348.60 6,800,420.17 5,916,788.95 5,684,780.06 6,183,909.31 5,504,306.38 5,724,588.29 80,654,659.14

Cost of Revenues

Routing Fees:

5020-000-00 Routing Fees 3,434,441.00 3,153,937.00 2,649,394.00 2,690,416.00 2,708,645.00 2,364,987.00 2,583,162.00 2,473,850.00 2,273,216.00 2,855,961.00 2,469,331.00 2,620,547.00 32,277,887.00

Total Routing Fees 3,434,441.00 3,153,937.00 2,649,394.00 2,690,416.00 2,708,645.00 2,364.987.00 2,583,162.00 2,473,650.00 2,273,216.00 2,855,961,00 2,469,331.00 2,620,547.00 32,277,887.00

Clearing:
5010-000-00 Clearing Fees 81,890.00 84,916.00 82,717.00 79,573.00 80.775.00 84,548.00 79,593.00 80,971.00 80,482.00 76,677.00 77,689.00 84,000.00 973,833.00

Total Clearing 81,890.00 84,918.00 82,717.00 79,573.00 80,775.00 84,548.00 79,593.00 80.971.00 80,482.00 76,677.00 77,689.00 84,000.00 973,833.00

Rebates:

5030-000-00 Rebate Expense 1,419,076.29 1,760,745.70 1,797,798.14 1,897,946.03 1,715,502.71 1,370,392.66 1,161,883.23 679,135.41 659,510.61 727,064.57 577,387.93 575,442.58 14,341,645.86

Total Rebates 1,419,076.29 1,760,745.70 1,797,798.14 1,897,946.03 1,715,502.71 1,370,392.66 1,161,863.23 679,135.41 659,510.61 727,064.57 577,367.93 575,442.56 14,341,845.86

Other Expense:

5050-000-00 EDGA Trading PL 1,668.58 329.44 168.00 2,166.00

Totai Other Expense 1,688.58 329.44 168.00 2,168.00

Total Cost of Revenues 4,935,407.29 4,999,600.70 4,529,909.14 4,669,603.59 4,504,922.71 3,820,257.10 3,824,618.23 3,233,958.41 3,013,376.61 3,659,702.57 3,124,387.93 3,279.989.58 47,595,731.86

Gross Margins 2.521,608.53 2,904,933.39 2,739,020.98 2,920,782.08 2,840,728.97 3,453,091.50 2.975,801.94 2.682.832.54 2,671,403.45 2,524,206.74 2,379,918.45 2,444,598.71 33,058,927.26
GrossMarginsasa%ofRevenues 33.82% 38.75% 37.88% 38.48% 38.67% 47.48% 43.76% 45.34% 46.99% 40.82% 43.24% 42.70% 495.73%

Fixed Expenses -

Compensation and Benefits:
6000-000.00 Allocated Comp and Bt 1.281,699.02 1,371,635.29 1,331,418.80 1,278,753.66 1,309,604.36 1,256,723.32 1,284,613.82 1,258,348.40 1,278,692.83 1,241,034.94 1,212,734.00 1,535,940.00 15,641,198.44

Total Compensallon and Benefits 1,281,699.02 1,371,635.29 1,331,418.80 1,278,753.66 1,309,604.36 1,256,723.32 1,284,613.82 1,258,348.40 1,278,692.83 1,241,034.94 1,212,734.00 1,535,940.00 15,641,198.44

Communications & Data Processing:
8010-000-00MocatedCommunicati 599.300.05 701,579.12 892,423.46 . 713,783.36 631,281.72 624,390.95 844,086.82 604,958.33 608,309.61 570,879.51 599,311.00 540,833.00 7,530,916.93
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Retained Eamings:

3100-000.00 Retained Eamings 10,079,210.14 10,959,558.23 10,959,556.23 10,959,556.23 10,959,556.23 10,959,556.23 10,959,556.23 10,959,556.23 10,959,556.23 10,959,556.23 10,959.556.23 10,959,556.23 10.959,556.23
4011-000-00 Matched Revenue - EC 318,634,145.49 30,387,067.89 55,582,395.95 82,359,000.20 111,719,289.35 147,262,331.54 182,313,951.28 212,614,297.17 241,783,942.38 269,420,063.93 303,352,698.85 330,569,180.25 358,320,480.96
4021-000-00 Routed Revenue - EDC 16,143,692.75 1,570,188.19 2,877,548.77 4,251,687.81 5,616,985.12 7,147,538.12 8,553,359.57 9,741,047.12 10,958,666.11 12,167,191.66 13,757,846.94 15,085,389.38 16,424,589.77
4025-000-00 Late FeeRevenue 54,931.87 5,539.62 13,389.24 18,782.04 24,060.42 31,553.29 37,822.50 49,591.90 57,349.44 57,621.86 58,818.88 60,191.30 63,698.25
4030-00%0 Market Data Revenue 35,992,852.70 3,296,179.96 6,374,297.13 9,654,714.82 12,577,131.42 16,297,450.91 19,887.910.09 23,287,057.91 26,610,115.50 30,147,285.77 33,347,989.41 36,362,133.34 40,093,248.76
407&000-000therincome 5,000.00 5,000.00 5,000.00 5,000.00 5,000.00
5011-000-00 Clearing Fees (1,030,018.03) (B1,690.00) (168,808.00) (249,525.00) (329,098.00) (409,873.00) (494,421.00) (574,014.00) (654,985.00) (735,487.00) (812,144.00) (889,833.00) (973,833.00)
5020-000-00 Routing Fees (14,185,680.80) (1,451,774.00) (2,535,063.00) (3,660,181,00) (4,872,522.00) (6,344,259.00) (7,734,722.98) (9,040,665.98) (10,304,832.98) (11,454,666.98) (12,877,069.98) (14.028,199.98) (15,077,618.98)
5031-000-00 Rebate Expense (318,177,770.32) (29,945,370.57) (54,406,412.38) (80,619,176.24) (108,924,990.80) (144,193,700.01) (179,149,287.02) (208,931,684.10) (237,575,795.34) (264,701,180.06) (297,991,653.66) (324,513,483.75) (351,729,177.20)
5050-000-00 Trading Enors (107,507.79) (1,298.81) (1,298.81) (2,122.21) (2,122.21) (8,323.40) (7,178.40) (7,178.40) (7,178.40) (8,070.44) (8,070.44)
6000400.00 Allocated Compensatio (14,400,620.20) (1,281,699.02) (2,653,334.31) (3,984,753.11) (5,263,506.77) (6,573,111.13) (7,829,834.45) (9,114,448.27) (10,372,796.67) (11,651,489.50) (12,892,524.44) (14,105,258.44) (15,641,198.44)
7000-00MO ANocated Business Den (708,975,57) (70,664.93) (144,170.57) (191,113.87) (226,781.29) (274,949.14) (357,605.57) (418,291.12) (482,486.31) (511,767.66) (591,142.21) (660,921.21) (713,298.21)
750%00-00 Allocated Professional (5,489,385.50) (438,109.85) (862,941.33) (1,201,140.67) (1,710,198.50) (2,258,196.14) (2,708,538.25) (3,625,636.00) (4,664,152.94) (5,484,711.21) (6,160,122.68) (6,755,137.68) (7,380,593.68)
8010-000-00 Allocated Communicati (12,600,221.58) (1,181,351.23) (2,200,883.49) (3,285,278.85) (4,433,126.11) (5,735,099.80) (6,977,376.27) (8,241,244.93) (9.524,291.16) (10,828,021,47) (12,135,830.11) (13,433,411.11) (14,652,704.11)
8510-000-00 Allocated Depreciation (3,205,011.83) (296,753.40) (533,497.52) (811,438.15) (1,083,751.59) (1,384,479.57) (1,680,385.47) (2,001.700.68) (2,337,087.70) (2,771,828.69) (3.169,781.23) (3,527,788.23) (3,894,520.23)
9000-000-00 Allocated Other Expen: (833,409.72) (67,893.25) (117,472.57) (178,135.99) (235,467.10) (297,898.22) (360,639.39) (412,063.60) (494,781.21) (558,122.16) (649,561.25) (750,068.25) (875,204.68)
9100.000-00 State Income Tax (570,203.00)
9500-000-00 Occupancy (606,740.06) (50,930.48) (101,860.96) (152,791.44) (203,721.92) (271,090.80) (327,061.28) (382,023.76) (437,523.84) (492,086.24) (554,572.89) (609,832.89) (667,006.89)
9600-000-00 Interest Expense (29,732.32)

Total Retalned Eamings 10,959,556.23 11,332,094.96 12,084,741.19 12,908,907.97 13,812,559.65 13,953,651.07 14,130,605.78 13,883,254.51 13,538,718.11 13,580,200.08 13.640,329.44 13,759,447.52 14,253,326.11

Total Stockholder's Equity 13,960,586.24 9,833,104.97 10,585,751.20 11,409,917.98 12,113,569.68 12,454,861.08 12,631,815.79 12,384,264.52 12,039,728.12 12,061,210.09 12,141,339.45 12,260,457.53 12,754,338.12

TotaluabilitiesandStockholders 55,312953.16 6 217.43 64,858,643.33 45,956,590.24 55,491,949.33 68,941,819.53 76.374.609.00 80,331,186.81 86,338,076.19 32,395,302.43 42,978,051.36 45,868,564.54 52,440,589.88



EDGX inc

For the Month Ending December31, 2013

January, 2013 February,2013 March, 2013 April, 2013 May, 2013 June, 2013 July, 2013 August, 2013 September, 2013 October, 2013 November, 2013 December,2013 YTD

Revenues

Commission Revenue 31,942,795.50 28,530,536.46 28,156,138.09 30,730,864.84 37,081,088.08 38,483,710.40 31,499,802.84 30,395,021.74 28,844,919.52 35,524,487.20 28,545,396.28 29,093.988.05 $374,808,748.98
Market Data 3,296,179.96 : 3,078,117.17 3,280,417.69 2,922,416.80 3,720,319.49 3,590,459.18 3,379,147.82 3,343,057.59 3,537,170.27 3,200,703.64 3,014,143.93 3,731.115.42 40,093,248.76
Other Income 5.000.00 5,000.00

Total Revenues 35,238,975.48 29,608,653.83 31,436,555.78 33,653,281.44 40,801,407.55 40,054,169.58 34,878,950.66 33,743,079.33 32,382,089.79 38,725,190.84 31,559,540.21 32,825,103.47 414,906,997.74

Cost of Revenues

Routing Fees 1,451,774.00 1,083.289.00 1,125,118.00 1,212,341.00 1,471,737.00 1,390,463.98 1,305,943.00 1,284,167.00 1,149.834.00 1,422,403.00 1,151,130.00 1,049,419.00 15,077,818.98
Clearing 81,890.00 84,918.00 82,717.00 79,573.00 80,775.00 84,548.00 79,593.00 80,971.00 80,482.00 76.677.00 77,689.00 84,000.00 973,833.00
Rebates 29,945,370.57 24,461,041.81 26,212,763.86 28,305,814.56 35,268,709.21 34,955,587.01 29,782,397.08 28,644,111.24 27,125,384.72 33,290,473.60 26,521,830.09 27,215,693.45 351,729,177.20
OtherExpense 1,298.81 823.40 4,201.19 855.00 892.04 8,070.44

Total Cost of Revenues 31,479,034.57 25,629,248.81 27,421,897.67 29,597,728.56 36,822,044.61 36,430,598.99 31,172,134.27 29,990,104.24 28,355,700.72 34,789,553.60 27,751,541.13 28,349,112.45 367,788,699.62

Gross Margins 3,759,940.89 3,979,404.82 4,014,658.11 4,055,552.88 3,979,382.94 3,623.570.59 3,706,816.39 3,752,975.09 4,026,389.07 3,935,637.24 3,807,999.08 4,475,991.02 47,118,298.12
Gross Margins as a % of Revenues 10.67% 13.44% 12.77% 12.05% 9.75% 9.05% 10.63% 11.12% 12.43% 10.16% 12.07% 13.64% 137.78%

Fixed Expenses

Compensation and Benefits 1,281,899.02 1,371,635.29 1,331,418.80 1,278,753.68 1,309,604.35 1,256,723.32 1,284,613.82 1,258,348.40 1,278,692.83 1,241,034.94 1,212,734.00 1,535,940.00 15,641,198.44
Communleations & DataProcessing 1,181,351.23 1,019,532.26 1,084,395.36 1,147,847.26 1,301,973.69 1,242,276.47 1,263,868.66 1,283,046.23 1,303,730.31 1,307,808.64 1,297,581.00 1,219,293.00 14,652,704.11
Depreciation and Amortization 296,753.40 236,744.12 277,940.63 272,313.44 300,727.98 295,905.90 321,315.19 335,387.04 434,740.99 397,952.54 358,005.00 386,734.00 3,894,520.23
Occupancy and Equipment Rentals 50,930.48 50,930.48 50,930.48 50,930.48 67,368.88 55,970.48 54,982.48 55,500.08 54,562.40 62,486.65 55,260.00 57,176.00 667,008.89
Pofessional Fees 438,109.85 424,831.48 338,199.34 509,057.83 547,997.64 450,342.11 917,297.75 1,038,318.94 820,558.27 675,411.47 595,015.00 825,456.00 7,380,593.88

Business Development 70,664.93 73,505.64 46,943.30 35,667.42 48,167.85 82,658.43 60,685.55 44,195.19 49,281.35 79,374.55 89,779.00 52,377.00 713,298.21
Other Expenses 67,893.25 49,579.32 60,663.42 57,331.11 62,431.12 82,741.17 51,424.21 82,717.61 63,340.95 91,439.09 100,507.00 125,136.43 875,204.88

TotalFixedExpenses 3.387,402.16 3,226,758.59 3,190,491.33. 3,351,901.20 3,638,271.52 3,448,615.88 3,954,167.66 4,097,511.49 4,004,907.10 3,855,507.88 3,688,881.00 3,982,112.43 43,824,528.24

Pre-Tax Income . 372,538.73 752,646.23 824,166.78 703,651.68 341,091.42 176,954.71 (247,351.27) (344,538.40) 21,481.97 80.129.36 119,118.08 493,878.59 3,293,769.88

Pre-Tax Income 372,538.73 , 752,646.23 824,166.78 703,651.68 341,091.42 176,954.71 (247,351.27) (344,536.40) 21,481.97 80,129.36 119,118.08 493.878.59 3,293,769.88

Net Incomel(Loss) 372,538.73 752,846.23 824,166.78 703,651.68 341,091.42 176,954.71 (247,351.27) (344,536.40) 21,481.97 80,129.36 119,118.08 493,878.59 3,293,769.88



EDGX inc

Forthe Month Ending December31, 2013

January, 2013 February, 2013 March, 2013 April, 2013 May, 2013 June, 2013 July.2013 August, 2013 September, 2013 October, 2013 November, 2013 December, 2013 YTD

Revenues

Commission Revenue:

4011-000-00 Matched Revenue - EC 30,387.087.69 25,215,328.26 26,776,604.25 29,360,289.15 35,543,042.19 35,051,619.74 30,300,345.89 29,169,845.21 27,636,121.55 33,932.634.92 27,216,481.40 27,751,280.71 358,320,460.98
4021-000-00RoutedRevenue-EDC 1,570.188.19 1,307,358.58 1,374,141.04 1,365,297.31 1,530,553.00 1,405,821.45 1,187,667.55 1,217,818.99 1,208,525.55 1,590,655.26 1,327,542.44 1,339,200.39 16,424,589.77
4025-000-00 Late Fee Revenue 5,539.82 7,849.62 5,392.80 5,278.38 7,492.87 8,289.21 11,769.40 7,757.54 272.42 1,197.00 1,372.44 3,506.95 63,698.25

Total Commission Revenue 31,942,795.50 26,530,538.48 28,156,138.09 30,730,884.84 37,081,088.06 38,463,710.40 31,499,802.64 30,395,021.74 28,844,919.52 35,524,487.20 28,545,396.28 29,093,988.05 374,808,748.98

Market Data:
4030-0004)0 Market Data Revenue 3,296,179.98 3,078.117.17 3.280,417.69 2,922.416.60 3,720,319.49 3,590,459.16 3,379,147.82 3,343.057.59 3,537,170.27 3,200,703.64 3,014,143.93 3,731,115.42 40,093,246.76

Total Market Data 3,296.179.96 3,078,117,17 3,280,417.69 2,922,416.60 3,720,319.49 3,590,459.18 3,379,147.82 3,343,057.59 3,537,170.27 3.200,703.64 3,014,143.93 3,731.115.42 40,093,248.76

Other income:
4070-000-00 Other Income 5,000.00 5,000.00

Total other Income 5,000.00 5,000.00

Total Revenues 35.238,975.46 29,608,653.63 31,436,555.78 33,653,281.44 40,601,407.55 40,054,169.58 34,878,950.66 33,743,079.33 32,382,089.79 38,725.190.84 31,559,540.21 32,825,103.47 414,906,997.74

Cost of Revenues

Routing Fees:
5020-000-00 Routing Fees 1,451,774.00 1,083,289.00 1,125,118.00 1,212,341.00 1,471,737.00 1,390,463.98 1,305,943.00 1,264,167.00 1,149,834.00 1,422.403.00 1,151,130.00 1,049,419.00 15.077,618.98

Total Routing Fees 1,451,774.00 1,083,289.00 1.125,118.00 1,212,341.00 1,471,737.00 1,390,483.98 1,305,943.00 1,264,187.00 1,149,834.00 1,422,403.00 1,151,130.00 1,049,419.00 15,077,618,98

Clearing:
5011-000-00 ClearingFees 81,890.00 84,918.00 82,717.00 79,573.00 80,775.00 84,548.00 79,593.00 80,971.00 80,482.00 76,677.00 77,689.00 84,000.00 973,833.00

Total Clearing 81,890.00 84,918.00 82,717.00 79,573.00 80,775.00 84,548.00 79,593.00 80,971,00 80,482.00 76,877.00 77,669.00 64,000.00 973,833.00

Rebates:
5031-000-00 Rebate Expense 29,945,370.57 24,461,041.81 26,212,763.88 28,305,814.56 35,268,709.21 34,955,587.01 29,782,397.08 28,644,111.24 27,125,384.72 33.290,473.60 26.521,830.09 27,215,693.45 351,729,177.20

Total Rebates 29,945,370.57 24,461,041.81 26,212,763.86 28,305,814.56 35,268,709.21 34,955,587.01 29,782,397.08 28,844,111.24 27,125,384.72 33.290,473.60 26,521,830.09 27,215,693.45 351,729,177.20

Other Expense:
5050-000-00 Trading Errors 1,298.51 823.40 4,201.19 855.00 892.04 8,070.44

Total Other Expense 1,298.81 823.40 4,201.19 855.00 892.04 8,070.44

Total Cost of Revenues 31,479,034.57 25,629,248.81 27,421,897.67 29,597,728.56 36,822,044.61 38,430,598.99 31,172,134.27 29,990,104.24 28,355,700.72 34,789,553.60 27,751,541.13 28,349.112,45 367,788.699.62

Gross Marg1ns 3.759,940.89 3,979,404.62 4,014,658.11 4,055,552.88 3,979,362.94 3,623,570.59 3.706.816.39 3,752,975.09 4,026,389.07 3,935,637.24 3,807,999.08 4,475,991.02 47,118,298.12
Gross Margins as a % of Revenues 10.67% 13.44% 12.77% 12.05% 9.75% 9.05% 10.63% 11.12% 12.43% 10.16% 12.07% 13.64% 137.78%

Fixed Expenses

Compensation and Benefits:
6000-00000AllocatedCompensatio 1,281,699.02 1,371,635.29 1,331,418.80 1,278,753.66 1,309,604.38 1,256,723.32 1.284,613.82 1,258,348.40 1,278,692.83 1,241,034.94 1,212,734.00 1,535,940.00 15,641,198.44

Total Compensation and Benefits 1,281,699.02 1,371,635.29 1,331,418.80 1,278,753.66 1,309,604.36 1,256,723.32 1,284,613.82 1,258,348.40 1,278,692.83 1,241,034.94 1,212,734.00 1,535,940.00 15,641,198.44

Communleations & Data Processing:
80fo-000-00AllocatedCommunicall 1,181,351.23 1,019,532.26 .1,084,395.36 1,147,847.28 1,301,973.69 1,242,276.47 1,263,868.66 1,283,048.23 1,303.730.31 1,307,808.64 1,297,581.00 1,219,293.00 14.652.704.11
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/€WIG KPMG LLP
Suile 1000
1000 Walnut Street
liansas City, MO 64106-2162

Independent Auditors' Report

The Board of Directors
BATS Global Markets, Inc.:

We have audited the accompanyingconsolidatedfmancial statements of BATS Global Markets, Inn, andits
subsidiaries (the Cornpany), which comprise tlie consolidated statements of financial condition as of
December31 2013 and2012,.atid the tolated cónsolidated stateinents of income coinprehensive income,
changes in stockholders' equity, aiid cash flows. for each of the years in the three-year period ended
Decembeit 31,2013; and the related.notes to the consolidatedfinancial statements.

Managengent'sResponsibility for the Financia( Statements

Management is responsible for thë preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated fmancial
statements in accordance with U.S.generally accepted accounting principles; this includes the design,
impleinentation, andmaintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of
consolidatedfinancial statements that are free from inaterfal misstatement,whether dueto fraud or error.

Auditors' Responsibility

Qur responsibility is to expressan opinion on theseconsolidated fmancial statemerits based on our atidits,
We conducted.our audits in.accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and in accordance with the; anditing standards of the Ptiblic Company Accounting Oversight
Board (United States).Tliose standards require that we plan änd perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidatedfinancial statementsarefree from material misstatement.

Än,audit nyolves performing.procedures to obtain audit evidencé about the amounts and disclosuresin the
consolidatedfmandial stateinents.Theproceduresselecteddependonthe auditors' judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material 2nisstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,the; auditor considers internal control relevant to the

entity's preparation and fair presentationof the consolidatedfinancial statements in order to design audit
prodedures that are appropriate in the dircumstances,but not for the purpóse of expressing an opinion on
the effectivenessof the entity's internal control.Accordingly, we express no suchopinion. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonablenessof significant
accounting estimates máde by inanagement, as well an evaluating the overall. presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

We belíevethat tI1e audit evidencewe have obtainedis sufficient andappropriate to provide a basisfor our

audit opinion.

KPMG LLP It a Dalsware lirrited liablay partnership.
jha U.S.rnamber firm of KPMG Intemattoral Cociperallva

(EPMGinlemaUonar).a&dss emity.



MM
Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statenients referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects,the financial position of the Company as of December 31, 2013 and 2012, and the resuíts of their

operations andtheir cash flows for each of the years in the three-year period. ended December 3 L,2013.in
accoidance with U.S.generally accepted accounting principles,

February 25,2014.
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BATS GLOBAL aíÀRIŒTS,INC.ANDSUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated Statements of Financial Condition

December 31,2013 and 2012

(In thousands, except share data)

Assets 2013 2012

Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 87,217 $ 82,514
Financial investments:

Trading investments, at fair value 7,004 7,497
Available-for-sale investments, at fair value 18,198 22,295

Accóilrits iedeivable; net,including$18,626and $14,574 fromrelated parties at
December 31,2013 and 2012, respectively 53,854 60,748

Income taxes receivable . 670 654
Other receivables 1,682 1,804
Prepaid expenses 3,605 4,874

Total current.assets 172;230 180,386

Property and eiláipinent, net 11,577 16,997
Goodwill 197,937 194,294
Intangible assets,net 48,995 57,596
Debt issuancecoats,net 4,646 4,997
Deferred income taxes,net . 9,242 13,339
Investment in Euro CCP 10,337 -
Other assets ,979 1,961

Total assels $ 456,943 $ 469,570

Liabilities and Stockholders'Equity

Current liabilities;
Accounts payableand accrued expenses,including $4,054and $4,995to related

partiesätDecember 31,2013 and 2012,respectively S 25,044 4 26,635
Scotion31 feespayable 36;768 51,290
Current portionoflong-term debt 17,422 48,776
Contirigantconsideratioit liability - 3;780
Deferred ihoomefaxes 261 406

Total current liabilities 79,495 130,887

Long-term debt,less current podion 228,602 238,843
Unrecognized tait benefits 6;732 9,699
Otlier liabilities 2,098 2,483
Commitmentsand contingencies

Stockholders' equity:
Common stock, $0.01parvalue.24,500,000 voting and 500,000 non-voting

shares authorized; 23,685;026voting and189,500non-voting shares issued
atDecember 31,2013; 23 556,670voting and 189,500non-voting
shares issiredat December 31,2012 239 236

Common stockiritreasury, at cost 1,075,176and1,001,723voting shares
at December 31,2013and2Ol2, respectively (42,651) (40,322)

Additioital paid-in capital 128,604 125,601
Retained eamings(deficit) 44,287 (2,551)
Áccumulated ofber conipiehensive inconie, tiet 9,537 4,694

Tofal stockholders' equity 140,016 87,658

Total liabilities and stoökholders' equity 3 456,943 $ 469,570

See accompanying notes to consolidated fibancial statements.



BATS GLOBAL MARKETS, INC.AND SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated Statements of Income

Yearsended December 31,2013, 2012 and 20I1

(In thousands,execpt shareand persharedata)

2013 2012 2011

Reyenues:
Transaction fees, including $293;893, $303,876and$207,753 from

relatedparties for the yearsended December31,2013, 2012
arid.2011,respectively S 612,806 :S 645,310 S 695,357

Market data fess 59,357 60,253 55;593
Regulatoiy transactionfees, including $31,365,S94,326and

S64,360from related partiesfor the yearsended Decentber31,
20l3, 2Øl2 and 2011,respectively 127,414 14a,092 156,48d

Port fees . 39,104 30 188 19,028
Othet 2,815 861 171

Total revenues 841,496 884704 926,629

Costofrevenues:
I ¡quidity payments,.including $252;754,5268,386ana5223,4$9to

reTatedparties for the yearsendedDecember 31,2013,2012
and 2011,respectively 474,688 508169 566,103

Routing and clearing,.including $3,373;$23,319 and $26;828 to
relatedparties for the yearsendedI)ccember 31,2013, 2012
and 2011,respectively 42,476 51 271 75,985

Section 31 fees. 127,414 148092 156,480
Qther .87 219 77

Total cost of revenues 644,665 707,751 798,645

Revenues less cost of revenues 196,$31 176;953 127,9$4

Operating expenses:
Compensationand benefits 41;457 48,412 42,947
Depreciation:and amortization 15,169 17,041 8,393
Systemsand dataconunuriidation 9,612 11,899 10,053
Occupancy 1,833 2,344 1,506
Professional and contract services 8,125 .9,224 10,290
Regulatory costs . 5 377 53685 5,477
Changesinfair value of contingent consideratiónliability - 12,400 300
Impairment of assets - 3,478 . 167 -
General and administrative 10,002 10,465 10,733

Total operating erpenses 95,053 117,637 89 699

Operating income i Ol,778 59 316 38 285

Non-operating (expenses)iticorne:
Inteitst and investruent(expense)income (25,825) (646) 174
Other expense (290) (563) (116)

Income before inconie tax provision 75,663 58,107 38;343

Income tax provision 28,525 26,î33 14,795
Net income S 46,838 S 31,574 S 23;548

Basicéamingspershare S 2.07 S 1.40 S 1.29
Diluted carningsper share 3 2.06 S j.39 S 1.26

Cashdividend declared per common stock S - S 17.62 S -

Basíaweighted averageshares outstanding 22,641,629 22,508,811 18,229,825
Diluted weighted averagesharesoutstanding 22,738,747 22 746,146 I8,745;279

Seeaccompanyingnotesto consolidatedfinancial statements.
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BATS GLOBAI.MARICETS, INC.AND SUESIDIARIES

Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income

Years ended December 31,2Ol3,2012and 2011

(In thousands)

2013 2012 2011

Nct income S 46,838 S 31,574 S 23,548
Other comprehensiyc income (loss),before tax:

Foreign currency translation adjustments 6,564 12,897 (2,076)
Unrealized liolding gains (losses) on available-for-sale investments

recognized 29 (474) (206)
Ins: .Reclassification adjustments for gains (losses) iheluded

in interest and investment income. (32) 683 -

Other compreheitsiye income (loss),before tax 6,561 13 106 ( 282)
Income tax (provision) benefit related to components of other

comprehensive income(loss) (1,718) (4 786) 805

Other coniprehensive income Goss),net of tax 4,845 8 320 (1,477)

Comprehensive income $ 51,881 S 3 ,894 S 22,071

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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BATSGLOBALMAR3ŒTS.3NC.ANDSUBSIOÏARIES

Consolidated Štatements.of Change inStacklialfiers' Eqtiity

Yearsendi:d ecciaber31.20i3,'2012and2Õf1

(Inthousands,exceptshared:lta)

Accumulated

Commonitock Comaart Addiilonal 3tetained other Torni

Voting Non-voting stock paideia caraings compreheosive štockholders'

shniesoutstanding sh:hresootstanding Parvalue mtrensuiy empiin1 (deficir) (fasslinconcener equity

BalancentDécember31.2010 17.536.213 - S 279 s (3.Sos) $ 175,752 S 28.333 3 (2,149) S 195.660

Common stock issued under employee stock plans 176.176 - 3 (3.057) 5.700 - - (2.354)
Stock-basedcompensation - -. - - 5.313 - - 5.313
En¿csstiueboriefits frotnotóckabdied compensation - - - - 3.287 - - 3.287
.AcquisitionofCíii-XEropeLimitëd 4.177$53 189J0a 44 - 219347 e- - 219.591
Othercomprehensiveloss,nctoftax - - - - (1.477) (1,477)
Netincome - - - - - 23.545 - 23.548

ilalsace.nfDécéinber31.2012 22,190a42 189,500 226 (11,562) 409.599 51931 (3.626) 446.568

Commenstocklesuedanderemployéeštockpl:ins :364.705 - 10 (28.760) .21.209 - -. (7.542)
Stock-basedcompensation - - - - 5,632 - - 5.632
Excess ime bene5ts from stock-basedcompensation - - - - 3.332 -. - 3.332
Distribution - - - - (314.171) (86 056) - (400,227)
Other comprehensive inóórrie, pe(of tay. - .- - - - - 8,320 S.320
Net income - - -- - - 31 574 - 31:574

BalanceatDécemberal,2012 22.554.947 189,500 236 (40,322) 125,60L (2351) 4.094 37,658

Commorrstocle issuedunder employeesinck plans 98.d.S - 3 (954) 731 - - (220)
Shafe tcpurchasci (43,225) - - (1,315) .- - - (1375)
Stock-basèd coinpensadon -- - - 2,237 - - 2.237
Execas täveexpense from sfock-based tompên :ition - - - - 35 - -- 35
Other comprehensive income, pet of tax 4.843 4,543
74etincome - - 46.838 - 46.S38

BalanceitDaceniber31.2013 22.609.850 189300 S 239 S (42.65L) . S 128;604 S 44.237 S 9.537 5 140.016

See accompaying notes to censolidatedimusicisi scitements.
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BAT5 GLOBAC álAltidTS, INC, AND SlJBSIDIA filES

Consolidated Sistements of Cash Flows

Years ended Decernber 31,2013, 2012 and 20 11

(in thousands)

2013 - 2012 2011

tash flowi from operating activities:
Netincomo S 46,838 S 31;574 5 23,548

Adjustments to reconcile vet income to net cash provided byoperating activities:
Depreciationandamortization 15,169 17,041 8,393
Arnottization of debt issuance cos anddebt discount 5,935 191 -
Change in fair yalue of contingent consideration - 12A00 300
Frovisionforuncolleelableaccountsicceivabic 55 187 373

Deferred)ncorne taxes 3,952 (1,001) (5,768)
Stock-basedcompensation 2;237 5,632 5,313:
Realized gain on investments owned (26) -
Loss(gain) on disisosalof property añaequiprnent 220 393 (32)
Changes in assetsand liabilities:

Refeivables,inohulingS4,052,Sl,885 and $884 from related parÙesfor
the years endedDecember,31, 2013, 2012 aud íol l.respectively 7,107 (5 202) 7313

Trading financial irntstments, net 493 23,536 (21.034)
Prepaid and other assets 1,274 (3,234) 922
Accounts payable and accrued expenses, including $941,34,510and $3,119

io related partiesfor theyears ended December 31,2013,2012 and
2011,respectively (1,693) (13,6(6) 7,770

Sectión 31fees payab (14,523) (3;836) . 21,399
Payrnent of contingent consiecrationrelatedto Chi;XEiitolic actiuisilida (3,780) (8,920) -
Otherliablilties (139) 9,974 (308)

L'etcash.provided byoperating activities 43,119 65,069 48,189

Cash flowsfeominyesiing activities:

Acquisitipii..stet.ofeashsequired - - 13,402
Purchasesof avaliable-for-sale financial investments (55,477) (162,806) (308,106)
Proceeds frontmaturidès of available-for-sale financial investments 92,600 260387 204,400
Proceeds.from sliortterm investments - 3.115 -
Purchase of intangible asset 217 -
Investrheblin EutoCCP (10,337) -
Proceeds from disposalof propertyand equipment - 33 78
Purchasesofpropeitfand equipment (3,597) (6 909 @,550

Netcalh(uscdin)providedbyinvestingactivities (9,8[1) 94,546 (99,779)

Cash flows from financing activities;
Distribudonspaid .. (145) (398,924) -
Paymentoflonglermdobt . (45,000) - -
Proceeds from long-term debt - 300,000 -

Paymenf ofeontingentÏiability rslited to Chi-X Eiirope neqisition - (52,300) -

Debtissuance costs and debt discount - (19;561) -
Probeeds from thenercise ofstock-based compensation - 4¿4 1.234
Excesstaxbenefits from stock-based compensation .35 3;33 3,287
Purchases öf treasurf stock (1,592T (7,975) (3,588)

Ngt eash(usedin)providedbyfinancing activities (46;702) (175,000) 933

Effectof foreign currency exchange rate changes on cash (1,903) (1,460) (14)

lucrease (decrease) in cash and cásh eiluivalents 4,703 (16,845) (50,671)

Cash and easkequivalents:
Ileginningofyear 82,514 99;359 15Ó,030

Endofycar S 87,217 S 82,514 S 99,559

Supplemental disclosute of cash paid:
Cashpaidforincometaxes,netofrefunds 5 28,908 3 20,523 S 10,859

Supplemental disdosure ofnoncash transactions:
:Forfeiture of commori stockfor payment of exercise.ofstockoptions S 767 $ 20,785 S 4.469
Dividend payable onunvested restricted stoel; - 1;303 -

Supplemental disclosure ofnoncash investing actisities:
Short-term investments acquired Š - 5 - S 3,111
Propertyandequipmaritacquired - - 5,212
Goodwillacì¡ired - - 187,130
Intangible assetsacquired - - 62,300
Otherigsetsacquired - - 13;233
Fairvalue of contingent liability at acquisition date - - 52;300
Liabilities assumed - - 9,386
1ssuanceof commonstock related to acquisition - - 219,591

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.



BATS GLOBAL SIARKETS, INC.AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31, 2013, 2012 and2011

(I) Nature of Operations

BATS Global Markets, Inc. and its consolidated subsidiaries (the Company or BATS).is an innovative

global financial technology company that develops andoperates elettronic markets for the trading oflisted
cash equity securities in the United States (U.S.)and Europe and listed equity options in the U.S.The
Company is headquartered in the KansasCity, Missoursarea with additional offices in New York and
London, United Kingdom(U.K,).

Ili the United States, the Company operates two national securities exchanges,BATS Exchange, Inc.
(BZX) and BATS Y-Exchange, Inc; (BYX). Both trade; listed. cash equity securitiesand exchange-traded
products, such as exchangeltraded funds (ETFs),but eaclí target different market segments by offering
different, pricing alternatives. BZX also opetates a market for trading listed equity options and the
Cöinpariy also lists'ETFs on BZX. The Compatiy also operates a brokei-dealer, BATS Trading,Inc.
(Trading) that provides rou ed transaction services for listed cash equities andoptioticoutracts, In Europe,
the Company's RecögnisedInvestment Exchange(RIE),BATS Trading Limited (BTL), offers trading in
listed cash equity securities froin within 25 European indices, in addition to ETFs, exchange-traded
commodities and international depositaryreceipts. Chi-X Europe Liinited (Chi-X Burope) provides routed

transaclion,servicesfor listed cashequitieswithin the Europeanmarket.BTL and Chi-X Europeconibined
are referred,to as BATS Chi-X Europe. During the:fourth quarter 2013, the Company also began listing
ETFsonBTL.

(2) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(a) Principles of Accounting

The Company follotys accoynting standards established by the Financial Accounting Standards

Board (FASB) to report its financial condition, results of operations and. cash flows. Refererices to
accounting principles generally accepted in the U.S.(GAAP) in these footnotes are to the
FASB Accounting StaneardsCodification (ASC or Codification).

(b) Basis ofPresentatiyn

The accompanyingfínancial statementsarepresentedona consolidatedbasisto inchide tíie accounts
and transáctions of BATS GlobatMarkets, Inc. and its wholly owned subsidiaries and all significant

intercompany .accounts and. transactions have been eliminated. Results from operations in fiscal
year 2011 related to Chi-X Europe are reflected from the effective date of the acquisition. Seenote 3
for additional information.

(c) Use of Estimaies

Tlie preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires management
to niake estiniates.andassumptions that affect the reported amounts of assetsandliabilitios asweltas
disclösureof the amountsof contingent assetsandliabilities at the dateof the consolidatedfinancial

statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the i·eporting period. Actual
results could differ materially from those estiiriates. Mäteríaí estimates that are. particularly
susceptible to significant. change .in the near term include the receiváble foit inarket data fees,the
valuation ofgoodwill and unredognizedtax benefits.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011

(d) Cash and Cask Equivalënts

Ti1e Company's cash and cash equivalents are .exposed to concentrations of credit risk. The

Company maintains cash at various financial institutions and brokerage firms which, at times; may
be in excess of the federal depository insurance limit. The Company's management regularly
monitors these institutions and believes that the potentiaí for future loss is minimal. The Company
considers all ilquid investments with original or acquired niatutities of tiiree months or lessto be
cashequivalents.

(e) Financial Investments

Finanóial iñestments are classifiedas trading or available-for-sale.

Trading financial investments represent financial investniants heldby tile broker-dealer subsidiary
that retain the industry-specific accounting classification .required for broker-dealers. These

intestments are recorded at fair value with unrealized gains and Tosses reflected in the consolidated
statements of income.

Available-for-sale financial investments are comprised of the financial investments not heldby tiie

broker-dealer subsidiáry; unrealized gains and losses, net of income taxes, are inchided as a

component of .accumulated other comprehensive income in the accompanying consolidated
statements of financial conditioit.

Interest on financial inyestments,including amortization of premiums and accretion of discounts, is
recognizedas incomewhen eamed.Realized gainsandlossesenfinancial investments are calotilated

using the specific identification method and are included in interest and investment (expense) income
in the accompanying consolidated statements of income.

A decline in the market value of any availabledor-sale investment below carrying amount that is
deeined to be other-than-temporary results in an impairment to reduce the carrying amount to
realizable value. To determine whether· an impainnent is other-than-temporary, the Company
considers all available inforinationrelevant to the collectability of the investnient, including past

events, current conditions, and reasonable and supportable forecasts when developing estimate of
cash flows expected to be collected.Evidence consideredl this assessment includes the reasons for

the impairment, the :severity and duration of the impairment, changes in vahie subsequent to
year-end, forecastedperformance of the investee,andthe generalmarket condition in the geographic
areaor industry in which thoinvestee operates.

(f) Accotuits Receivable,Nef

Accounts receivablearecárried at cost.Interest is recórded on reteívables once they exceed 60 days

past due On a periodic basis,management evaluatesthe Company's reteivables and deterniines an
appropriate allowante for uncollectible accounts feceivable based on anticipated collections. In
oiraumstances;vhere a specific customens inability to meet its financial obligations iy knowi)

(e.g.,bankruptcy filings),. the Conipany reoords a specific provision for uncollectible acconts
againstamounts due tö reduce.the receivablèto the amount the Company estimateswill be collected.
Once tlie Company determines an allowance for an uncollectible accountis necessary, interest on the
receivableceasesto beaccrued.See note 6 for allowancefor doubtful account activity.
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Notes to ConsolidatedFinancial statements

December 31,2013, 2012 and2011

(g) Property and Equipment, Net

Property and equipment, net is stated at cost less acetimulated depreciation. Depreciation is

computed using the straight-liue method over the estimated lives of the assets, generally ranging
from three to seven yeats, Expenditures for repairs and maintenance are charged to expense as
incurred. Depreciation of leasehold improvements is calculated using the straight-line method over
the shorter of the related leaseterm of the estimated usefullìÈeóÈthe assets,

Long-lived assets to be held and used are reylewed to determine whether any events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the;carrying amounts of the assetsmay not be recoverable. The Company
bases this evaluation on such impairment indicators as the nature of the assets,the future economic
benefit of the assets,any historical or future profltability ineasurements, as well as other external
market conditions or factors that may be present. If such impairment indicators are present that

viould indicate that the carrying amount of any asset may not be recoverable, the Company
determines whether an impainnent lias occurred through the use of an undiscounted cash flow
analysis of the asset at the lowest level for which identifiable; dash floivs exist. In the event of

impairment, the Company recognizes a lossfor the difference betweentlie carrying amountand the
estimated value of the assetas measured using quoted market prices or, in the absénceof quoted

market prices, a discountedoash floveanalysis.

The Coinpany accounts for software development costs undei ASC Topiä 350, intangibles -

Goodwill and Other. The Company expenses software development costs as incurred during the

preliminary projeet stage,while capitalizing.costsincurred during the applicationdevelopmentstage,
which includesdesign,coding, installation andtesting activities.

(h) Goodwill andIntangibletissets, Net

Goodwill represents the excess of purchaseprice over the value assignedto the net tangible and
identifiable intangible assets of ia business acquired.. Goodwill is allocated to the Company's
reporting units based on the assignment of the fair values of each reporting unit of the acquired
company. The Company is required to test goadwill for impairment at the reporting unit level
annually,or in interimperiods if certain éventsóceurindicatingthat the carrying valuemay be
impaired, The impairment test is performed. during the fourth quarter using December i" carrying
values, and if the. fair value of the reporting unit is found to be less. than the carrying value, an
impairment loss is recorded.The Company completed its annual goodwill impairment test in the
fourth quarterof 2013 and determined thatno impalingentexistad.

Intangible assets, not, primarily include acquired trademarks and trade names, enstomer
relationships, strategic alliance agreements,and licenses and registrations.. Intangible assets with
finite lives are amortized based on the disconted cash flow inethod applied over the estimated

useful lives of the intangible assets.

Intangible.assets deemed to haye indefinite useful lives are not amortized,but instead are tested for

impairment at least aimually, usually concurrently with goodwill. Impairment exists if the fair value
of the asset is less than the carrying amount, and in that case; an impairment; loss is recorded; The

Companyhas performed the required intangible assets impairment tests and the determined that the
strategic alliance intangible assetis iinpaired as of December31, 2013.The value of the asset was
written off to impairrnent of assetsin theconsolidated statementsof incomes
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BATS GLOBAL MARKETS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Deceit1ber 31,2013, 2012and 2011

Impainnent of assets recognized in 2012 has been reclassified front other expense to impairment of
assets to conform with current year presentation.

(i) Foreign Currency

The financial statements of foreign subsidiaries where the functional currency is not the U.S.dollar
- are translated into U.S.dollars using the excitangerate.in effect as of each statemelit of financial
condition date. Statements of income and cash flow amounts are translated using the average

exchange rate during the period.The cmulatiyó effects of translating the statement of financial
condition accountsfrom the functional currency into the U.S,dollar at the applicable exchange rates
are included in accumulated other comprehensive income. Foreign currency gains and Josses are
recorded as other expense in the consolidated statements of income.

(j) Income Taxes

Deferred taxes are recorded on a liability method whereby deferred tax assets are recognized for
deductible temporary differences and operating loss and tax credit carryforwards, and deferred tax
liabilities are recognized for taxable temporary differences, Temporary differences are, the
diffetences between the reported amounts of assetsand liabilities and their táx bases, Deferred tax

assets are reduced by a valuation allowance vihen, in tlie opinion of management, it is more likely
than not that someportion or all of the deferredtax assets will not be realized. Deferred tax assets
and liabilities are adjusted for the effects of clíanges in tax laws and rates on the date of enactment.

The Company recognizes the tax benefit froni an uncertain tax position only if it is more likely than
not that the tax position will be sustainedon exainination by the. taxing authorities, based upon:the
tächnicat merits of the posììion.The tax benefit secognized in tífe consolidated fmancial statements

from such a position is measured based on the largest benefit that has a greater than 50°Ålikelihood
of being realized uponultimate settlement.Also, interest andpenaltiesexpense is recognized on the
full amount of deferred benefits for uncertain tax positions. The Company's policy is to include
interest and penalties related to unrecognized tax benefits in the incoine tax provision within the
cónsolidatedstatements of income,

(A) Revenue Recognition

Transaction Fees and Liquidity Payments

thider the Company's."maker-taker" pricing mödel on BZX and the Compäny's RIE, a member

posting en order (the liquidity maker) is paid a rebate (recorded in ligtiidity payments) for an
exectíon occuiting agaitist that order, and a meniber executing against an order resting on the
Company's book (ths líqtiidity taker) is charged a fee (recordeciin transaction fees).As a result,
fransaction feesconsist.of"taker" fees androuting fee reyenueschargedoli securitiesthat are routed
to anoiliet market center.Transaction fees and liquidity payments are consideredearned and incurred

upon execution of a trade aridarerecognizecion a trade-date basisand recorded on a grossbasis in
reyenues and.cost of reverfues.

1Jnder the Company's Naker-maker" pricing model ou BYX, a liquidity. taker is paid a rebate

(recorded in Iiquitiity payments)for an execution occurring against that order and a liquidity maker
is charged a fee (recorded in trànsaction fees) for posting such an order. Transaction fees. and
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011

liquidity paymentsareconsideredearnedand incurred uponexecution of a trade andare recognized
on a trade-date basis and recorded on a gross basis in revenues and cost of revenues.

Market Uafa Fees

Market data feesyare earned from proprietary market data products and U.S.tape plans, including the
Unlisted Trading Privileges Plan (UTP),. the ConsofidatedTape Association PÌan(CTA), and the

Options Price Pseporting Authority, LLC (OPRA).Fees,net of plan costs, from UTP and CTA are
allocated and distributed to plan participants according to their share of tape fees based on a formula

required by Securities anaExchange Commission (SEC) Regulation NMS that takes into account
both trading and quoting activity. Fees froni the CTA and UTP areestímatedand recognized on a
monthly basis and received approximately 45 days after quarter end.Market data fees from OPRA
are allocated based upon the share of total options transactione oleäred for each of ilie OPRA
membei's..Fees from OPilA are estimated and .recognized on a inonthly basis and received
approximately 30 daysafter quarter end.During 2012 and 2013, the Company began charging data
subscribers for proprietary market data ín its European Equities and U.S.Equities segment,
respectively.The market data fees are recognizedon amonthly basis.

Maiket data produdt revenue recognized in 2011 hasbeenreclassified from other revenue to market
data feesto conform with current year presentation.

Regulatory Transaction and Section 31 Fees

BZX and BYX, as U.S.exchanges,are assessed Section 31 fees pursuant to the Securities Exchange

Act of 1934 (Exchange Act). Section31 fees are assessed on the notional value traded and are

designed to recover the costs to the govermnentof supervision and regulation of securities niarkets
and securities professionals.These fees arepaid directly to the SEC by BZX and BYX. BZX and

BYX, iti turn, collect regulatory transaction fees that are designedto equal to the Section 31 fees
from their members..TheCompany acts as the principal versus an agent on these transactions,and
therefore thesetransactionsare reported grossin the consolidated statements of.itícome. BZX and
BYX collect the regulatory transaction fees as a pass-through charge from members ekecuting

eligible trades and recognizethese ainounts.in reventies,and the rolatedSeefion31 fees in cost of
revenues as incurred on a settlement-date basis.Regulatory transaction fees received are included in

cash and cash equivalents and financial investments in the consolidated statements of.financial
condition :at the time of receipt, As required by law, the amount dite to the SEC is remitted

semiannually andrecoided as Section31 fees payable to the SEC in the.consolidated statementsof
financial condition until paid. Because the Company itolds the funds teceived until payment is
remitted to the SEC, the Company earns interest on the related balatices.

PoitFees

Port feesai:egenerated primarily from connectlyity servicesrelated to BZX and BYX in the U.S.and
BTL.in Europe. Port fees aresecognizedona monthly hasis.

Concentrations of Revenue and Liquidity Payments

For the year ended December 31, 2013 one member accounted for 10% of the Company's
transaction fees, For the years ended.December 31,2012 and2011, no members accounted for more

than 10%. of the Companyis transaction fees.For the years ended December31,2013, 2012 and
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2011,approximately 12%,10%and 13%,respectively, of total liquidity paymentseach year were

paid to orie member, substantially all of which is recorded in the U.S.Equities segment.No other
members accounted for more than 10% of the Conipany's liquidity payments during the years ended

December 31,2013 2012 and 2011.

No member is cotitractually or otherwise obligated to continue to use the Company's services. The
loss of, or a significant feduction of, participation by these members may have a material adverse

effect on the Company's business financial condition, results of operationsand cash flows.

(I) Earnings Per Sit are

The Company presents both basic and diluted earnings per share. Basic earnings per share is:

colioputed by dividing net income by the weighted average number of conunon shares outstanding

during the period.Diluted euntingsper share is computedby dividing net income by the sum of the
weighted averagénuinber of conunon sharesand.dilutive common share equivalents outstanding.

(m) Stock-Based Compensation

The Company grants.stock-based compensatión to its employees through avvards of stock options
and restricted stock.The Company records stock-based toitipensation expensefor all stock-based

compensationgranted based on the grant-date .fair value.The Company recognizes compensation
expense related to stock-based compensation awards with graded vesting that have a service
condition on a straight-lirie basisóver the reqtiisite serviceperiod of the entire award.

The amoulit of stock-based compensation expense related to awards of restricted stoök is based on
the fair ualtie of BATS GlobalMarkets Inc. common stockatthe date of grants

The amount of future stock-based compensation expense related to awards of stock options is based
on the Black-Scholes valuation model.Assumptions used to estimate the grant-date fair value of
stock options are deterinined as follows:

• Bxpected tenn is detegnined using the simplified method using the averäge between die
.contractual terni andvesting period of the award,The simplified method was useddue to the
lack of historical infonivation;

• Expected volatility of award grants made under íbe Company's plan is iueasured iising the

weighted average of historicaí daily changesin the market price of the conunon stock of
comparable public cotnpanies over the period egtial to the expected term of the award or a
niiiiiinuin of two years ifcomparable:public company historical niarket prices are not available
for the entire expected term;

• Expected dividend rafe is deterritiited basedon expected dividends to be declared;

• Risk-free interest rate is. equivalent to the implied yield on zero-coupon U.S.Treasury bands
with a matt rity equal to the expected fenn of the awards;and

• Forfeitures are based on the history of cancellations of awards granted and management's

analysis of potential forfelàires.
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(n) Bitsiness Conibitrations

The Company accounts for business combinations in accordance with ASC Topic 805, Business
Conrbinajions, which requires identifiable assets, liabilities and goodwill acquired in a business

combination to be recorded at fair value at the acquisitiod date.Additionally, ASC Topic 505
yequireštransattiön-related costs to be expensed in the period incurred.

(o) Debt Issuance Costs

The Company aceounts for debt issuance cost in accordance with ASC Topic 470, Debt, which
requires that all costs incurred to issue debt be capitalized and ainortized over the life of the loan
using the interest method.

(p) Equity Methöttimiespnent.

In general,the equity method of accounting is used when the Éompany owns 20% to 50% of the
outstandingvotingstock of a company and when it is able to exercise significant influence over the

operating and financial poligies of a company. 'i'he Company has an investment ivhere it has
significant .influence and as such accounts, for :the investments under the equity method of
accolmting. The Company records the pro-rata share of earnings or losses each period and records

any dividends received as a reduction in the investment balance.The equity method investment is
evaluated for other-than-temporary declines in value by consideringavariety of factors sucli as the

earnings capacity of the investment and the fair value of the investment coinpared to its .carrying
amount. If the estimated fair value of the ínveshnent is less than the carrying amount and the decline
in vahie is considered to be other than temporary, the excess of the carrying amount over the
estiniated fair valtie is recogiilted in the financial statements as an impairment.

(3) Chi-.X Europe Acquisition

On November 30, 201) (the Aequisition Date) the Company acquired 100% of the outstanding common

shares of ChisX Europe The resultsof Chi-X Europe's operationshave beenincluded in the consolidated

fiiiancial statementssince the Acquisition Date.

The acquisition-date fair value of the consideration transferred totaled $304,1 million, which consisted of
the following (in thousands):

Eair value of considerationtransferred:
Cash $ 32,256
Fairvalue of shareoutlay 2Ï9,591
Contingent consideratioli S2,300

Total purchaseprice $ 304,147

The Company issued 4;$67,353shares of common stock valued at $50,28 per sharò.The fair value was
based on a ibird-pariy valuation that used a discounted casly flow model andvaluation multiples .observed

of publicly traded companies in a similar industry. Included in the acquisition was a contingent cash

payment. The fair value of the contingent consideration at the Acquisition Date was $52.3million and
changes in the fair value are recorded in operating expenses in the consolidated statementsaf income.This
value was. estimatedusing;a probability-;yeighted discountedcashflow method andrepresentsa Level 3
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measurement as defined in ASC Topic 820.The key assumptions used in this methodology were a discount

rate of 4.6%and a probability assignment to each of nine market share scenarios.

During the fourth quarter 2012, the contingent cash payment of $65million was earned, of which $61.2
million was paid through Deceinbei- 31,2012.The remaining payment wasmade in the first quarter 2013.

Thë iollowing is a reconciliation of the beginning and ending balance of tiie contingent consideration for
Chi-X Europe(in thousands):

Balance at December31,2011 $ 52,600
Changein fair value 12,400
Amount paid to former Chi-X surope sharehoitiers (61,220)

Balance at December 31,2012. 3,780
Changein fair value
Amoutit paid to fonner Chi-X Europe shareholders (3,780)

Balance at December 31,2013 $ ---

The following table summarizesthe estimated fair values of the assets acquired and liabilities assumed at

the Acquisition Date (in thousands):

Cashandcashequivalents. $ 45,658
Other current assets 12,952
Propertyand equipment 5,212
Identifiable intangible assets 62,300
Goodwill 187,130
Other assets 281
Liabilities (9,386)

$ 304,147

Of the intangible assets recognizedi $10.8 million was assigned to ncenses and registrations and has an
indefinite useful life. Therefore, this intangible asset will not be amortized, but its impainnent will be
evaluated at least annually. The remaining intangible assets will be amortized over the follownig useful
lives:

Balaticent

acqtiisition
date

Assets ' Useftillife (in thousands)

Customer relationships 20 years $ 45,100
Strategic alliance agreement 4.25years 5,8Q(i
Trademarks/trade names 1year 600

The goodwill acquii·ed wasassigned to the EuropeanEquities segment,as fluther described in note 13.The

goodwlll reoognized is attributable primarily to expected synergies of the .combinod workforce and
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technologies ofBTL and Chi-X Europe. Approxiinately $140 million of goodwill was.deductible for tax

purposes.

The fair value of accounts receivable acquired was $3.0million. The gross amount of accounts receivable
was $3.I.million,'ofwhich $0.1million was deemed to be uncollectable.

The Companyrecognized.$Ì9.3 million and $11.4million of acqtiisition-related costs expensedduring the

years ended December 3f, 2012 and 2011, respectively. These costs are included.in compensation and
benefits, professional andcontract services, andchangesin fair value of contingent consideration liability
in the clonsolidated statements of income,

The amounts :of revenue mid operating loss of.Chi-X Europe included in the Company% consolidated
staiements of income from the Acquisition Date to tlie period ending December 31,20I1 are as.follows

(in thousands);

Revenue $ 5;021
Operating loss (7,009)

The following unauditedpro fonna financial information presents the combined results of the Company
andChi-X Europe had the acquisition.date been January 1,2011 (in thousands):

Fiscal.Year ended

December 31,
2011

Revenue $ 999,490
Operatingincoine 40,897
Net income 24,295

Earníngs per share·
Basic $ 1.09
Diluted . 1.07

The supplemental2011pro forma amounts have been calculated after applying the Company's accounting

policies and adjusting the results to reflect the additional depreciation and amortization that would have
been chargedassumingthe adjusted fair values of property and equipment and acquired infangible assets
had been applied on January 1,2Øii. The supplemental2011pro forma financial informatiofi includespro
forma adjustments of $18.8million for acquisition related costs, such as fees to investment .bankers,

attorneys, accountants and other professional advisorsandseverance to employees.

(4) Restructuring

Prior to the Acquisition Date, Chi-X Europe entäted into retention agreements with its employees paid in
the first quarter2012 Subsequent to the acquisition of Chi-X Europe, the Companydetermined that certain
ChieX Europe einployees' positions were redundant.As such, the Company comniunicated employee
termination tenefits to these Chi-X Europe employees which included malíítaining the teens of the
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retention agreement. Certain employees were tenninated in 2011, while others were terminated in the

secondquarter of2012.

hi 201i, the Company recorded $4.6million of termination benefits in compensation and benefits within
the consolidatedstatement of income.At December31,2012, all termination benefits had been fully paid.

(5) Investments

Financial Investments

The Cympany's financial investments with original or acquired mattírities longer than ihree months, but
that mature in less than one year from the statementof financial condition date are classified as current

assets and aresuminarized asfollows (in thousands):

. December 31,2013
Unrealized Unrealized Fair

Cost basis gains: losses value

Availabietfor-sale:

U.S.Treasury securitiGå S 18,197 S 1 S - S 18,198

* Total financial investments S 18,197 S 1 S - S 18,198

December 31,2012
Unrealized Unrealized Fair

Costbasis gains losses value

Available-for-sale:
U.S.Treasury securities $ 22,292 S 3 S - $ 22,295

Total financial investments S 22,292 $ 3 S S . 22,295

Equity Method Investment

In the fourth quarter 2Òl3, the Company acquired a 25% ownersiiip interest in the European Multilateral

Cleating Facility, N.V.(EMCF) for $10.3 million. In January 2014, EMCF chatigodits nanie to European
Central Counterparty N.V.(EuroCCP).This investment is recorded as an equity method investment, as the

Company shares in the proportionate results of the ent.ity andhas significant influence over the entíty, but
does not control the entity,
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(6) Allowance for Doubtfui Accounts

Allowance for doubtful accounts nonsistedof the following for the years ended December 31,2013, 2012

and2011 (in thousands):

2013 2012 2011

Balanceat beginning of period 406 $ 352 $ 206
Additions:

Charges to income,includedin
generalandadministrativeexpense 55 187 373

Deductions:
Recoveriesof amountspreviously

writtenoff - - (2)
Chargesfor whichreserveswere

provided (113) (133) (225)

Balanceat endof period $ 348 $ 406 $ 112

(7) Property and Equipment, Nef

Property and equipmentconsistedof the following:as of December 31,2013 and2012 (in thousands):
2013 2012

Computer equipment and sofhiare $ 39,176 $ 38,107
Office furniture and fixtures 1,239 1,159
Leasehoid improvements 5,332 4,892

Total property and equipment 45,747 44,158

Less accumulated depreciation. (34,170) (27,161)

Property and equipment,nät $ 11,577 $ 16;997

Depreciation expense was$9.2million, $10.3 million and $8.0million for the years endedDecember 31,
2013, 20Ï2 and2011, respectively.
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(8) Goodwill and Intangible Assets,Net

The following table presents the details of the goodwill and intangible assets (in thousands):

Intangible
assets Goodwill

Balance at Decetuber 31,2011 $ 61,336 $ 185;549
Acquisitionofintangibleasset 2T7 -

Amortization . (6,719) -

Changes in foreign currency exchange stes 2,762 .8,745
Baiance.asofDeceniberŠl,20il 57,596 194,294

. Impairment of intangible.asset (3,478) -

Amortization (5,967) --

Changes in foreign currency exchange rates 844 3,643
Balance as of December 31.,2013 $ 48,995 $ 197,937

For the years ended December3.1.2013and 2012,amortization expense was $6.0million and $6.7miilion
respéctiisly. The estimated future amortization expense is $5.0million for 2014, $7.5 million for 2015,
$5.8million for 2Ò16,44.6million for 2017 and$3.6million for 2018.

The following table presents the categories of intangible assets,all of whiah is attributed to the European
Equities segment,except for domalii names,which are recorded in CorporateItems andEliminations (in
thousands);

December 31, December 31,
2013 2012

Trademarks.and trade names $ 636 $ 623

Customer relationships 47,798 46,827

Strategic alliance agreements - 6,022
Trading registrations and licenses 11,446 . I1,213
Domainhames 217 217

Accumulatedamortization (11,102) (7,306)
$ 48,995 $ 57,596

hi the fourth quarter 2013, the Company recorded an intangible asset:impairment charge totaling $3.5
million related to the sti-ategic alliance agreemelits acquired througfi tlie 2011 acquisition of Chi-X nurope.
The Company has determined the carrying antount of the intangible is not rocoverableandexceeded its fair
value. The fair value of the strategic alliance was determhied using the estimated cash flows from the

strategic alliànce, This charge was recorded in impairnient of assets in the consolidated statements of
income and attributed to the.European Equities segment.
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(9) Accounts Payable and Accrued Expenses

Accounts payable and acctued expenses consisted of the following as of December 31, 2013 alid 2012

(in thousands):

2015 2012

Accounts payable Š 123681 $ 14,356
Deferred rent 278 123

Dividends payable 312 367
Unrecognized.tax benefits - 470
Accrued expe;nses · 112773 11,319

Accounts payable and accrued expenses $ 25,044 $ 26,635

(10). Debt

On DedemberL9,a012 the Company entered into (i) a tenn loan agreement in the ainount of $300 million
and.(ii) revolving loans not to exceed $50million (the 3012 Loan').The proceeds received frain the term
learniere unaby the Company to pay a $298.9million dividend, or $13 20 per share,to all shareholders
of BATS Global Markets, Inc.common stock during the fourth quarter 2012.The tenn of the loanis six

years ending on December 19,2018 with a variable interest rato based on 1-month London Interbank
Offered Rate (LIBolt) (with a floor of 125basis points) plus a spréad of 575 basis points. The original
issue .discount was.$12.5million, or approximately 4.2%.The revolving loans have similar interest rates:

and a three-year term, ending on Deteinber 19,2015.Principal payments on outstanding balancesai·e

inade on a quarterly basis. The. Company indurred $7.1milion of debt issuance costs, which was

espitatizedand is being amortizedover the term of the10ans.

As .of Decembet 31, 2013 and 2012, the Company's long-tenn debt consisted of the followingi (in
thousands):

Decem ber 31,
2013 2012

Tennloan $ 255,000 $ 300,000
Less: debt discount (8,976) • (12,381)

Revolving loan.

Total debt 246,024 287,619
Less: ourrellt portion (17,422) (48,776)

Total long-tenn debt $ 228,602 $ 238,843

The imamortized debt discount will be amortized as part of interest and investment expense; through
December 19i 2018,the maturity date of the term loan.The effective interest rate on the tenn loan was
7.3% for báth the years ended December 31,2013and.20l2.

The credit agreement for the 20f2 Loan containscustomary affirmative andnegativecovenants,eventsof
default and a finaptial covenantto not.exceed a maximimi leverageratio measured each quarter througli
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the term of the; loan,. all as defined in the credit agreement. As of December 31, 2013 and 2012, the

Coinpany was in compliance with all covenants of the credit arrangements.

'The Company and certain. subsidiaries have guaranteed the repayment of obligations under the credit

agreement andhave yanted pledges of the sharesof certain subsidiaries along with a security interest in
certaid other assetsofthe Company andcertainsubsidiariesašòollateral.

As of December 3.1,2013,aggregateeminimuniannual maturities of long-term debt were $45 million in
2014, 201% 2016 and 2017.However, with the subsequentlefmancing (see Note: 22), the refinanced

aggregateminimum annual maturities of long-term debt are $17:6 million in 2014 and $23,5 million in
2015,5016,2017, 2018 and 2019.

Interest expanse retognized on the term loan and revolving lóans for the year ended December 31, 2013
and 2012:is asfollows (in thousands):

Year Endeil Year Ended

December 3Ï, December 31,
2013 2012

Components of interest expense:
Contractual interest S 20,019 $ 707
Amortization ofdebt discount 3,405 119
Amoitization of debt issuance cost 2,548 85

Interest expense · $ 25,972 $ 911

(11) Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income

The following represenfs the changesín accumulated other comprehensiveincome by component,before
tax:

Unrealized hulding

Foreign currency (losses) gains on Accuniulated other
translation available-for-sale coinprehensive

adjustment investments (loss)income

Balance at December 31,2011 $ (3,420) $ (206) .$ .(3,626)
Other oomprehensiveincome for the

twelve monthsending December31,2012 12,897 209 13,106
Tax effect onother comprehensive income (4,786) - .(4,786)

Balance at December 31,2O12 4,691 3 4,694
Othercomprehensiveincáme för the

twelve inonths endingDecember31, 2013 6,564 (3) 6,561
Tax effect onother comprehensive incolne (1,718) (1,718)

Balanceat December31,2013 $ 9,537 $ ' - - $ 9,537
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(12) Fair Value Measurements

Fair valtie is defined as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an

orderly transaction between marketparticipants at the measurement date and sets out a fair value hierarchy.
The fair value hierarchy gives the highestpriority to quoted prices m active inarkets for identical assets or
liabilities (Level 1) andthe lowest priority to unobservable inputs (Leyel 3). Inputs are broadly defined as

assumptionsmarket participantswould use in pricing an asset or liability. The three levölsof the fair value
hierarchy are described below:

Level 1: Unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the

reporting entity has the ability to access at the measurement date.The types of investments included
in Level I include hated equitiesand listed derivatives,

Level 2: Inpufs other than quoted prices within Leyel l that are observablefor the asset or liability,
either directly-or indirectly, and fair value is determined through the use oftnodels or other valuation
methodologies. Investmentsthat aregeneraíly included.in this category incliide corporate bonds and
loans, less liquid and testricted equity securities and certain over-the-counter derivatives. A
significant adjustment to a Level2 inprit could result in the Level2 meastranient beconiing a
Level 3;neasurement.

Level 3: Inputs are:unobservable for the asset of liability andinclude situationswhere there is little,
if any,market activity for the asset or liability. The inputs into thedetermination of fair value are

based upon the circumstances and the best information available at the time and may require:
significant management judgment or estimation. Inv.estmentsthat are included in this category

generally include equity and debtpositions in privste companies,

Financial investments classified as trading and available-for-sale. consist of highly liquid U.S.Tressry
securities. These securitiesare valued by obtaining feeds from a number of live data sources, includiiig
active market makers and inter-dealet brokersandtilerefore categorized as Level 1.

The following table piesents the Company's fair value hierarchy for those assets measured at fair value on
a recurring basisasofDåòember31,2013 and20Ì2(inthousads):

December31,2013
Total Level1 Level 2 Level 3

Assets:

Trading financial uive,siments:
U.S.Treasury securities $ 7,004 S 7,004 $ - $ -

Available-for-sale financial
invenlments'

U.S.Treasury securities 18,198 - 18,198 ---

Totalassets $ 25;2Õ2 S 25,202 $ - S -
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Ì)ecciuber31, 2012

Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

Assets:

Trading financial investments:
U.S.Treasury securities $ 7,497 $ 7,497 $ -- $ -

Available-for-sale financial
investments:

U.S.Treasury securities 22,295 22,295 - -

Total assets $ 29,792 $ 29,792 $ - $ -

Thé tairying amount of long-term debt appronimatesits fair value based on quoted LIBOR at both
December31,2013 and2012 andis considered a Level 2 measurement.

The carrying amount of cash and cash equivalents,.short-terin inyestments,:accounts receivable, notes
receivable, aatounts payable and Section 31 fees payable appronimatefair value due to their litiuid or
short-term nature arid are considered Level 2 measurenients.

The carrying amount:of the strategic alliance intangible at December 31,2013 is based on the estimated
cash flows froin the-strategicialliance whichis a significant unobsetvable input, andis.considereda Level 3
measurement valued at zero dollars.

The.carrying amount of the EuroCCP investment at Decembeis31, 2013 upprokintates fair value that is
based on the estimated cashflows from theEuroCCP entity, a significant uiiobservable input,and is also

consideredaLevel 3;measuieinent.

Also, the process to evaluate the impairment of goodwill involves calculationsto determine the fair value
of each reporting unit on a stand-alone basis. A combination of formulas using current market:multiples
and. cashflow scenarios is used to estintate the faii' value of each reporling unit That fair value is

compared to the carrying amount of the reporting unit, including its recorded goodwill. Tinpairment is
consideredto have occurred if the fair valueof the feportiiig unit is lowerthan the tarrying amountof the
reporting unit. These measurements are classified as Level 3

(13) Segment Reporting

The Company operates under three reportable segrnents: U.S.Equities, European Equities and
U.S.Options, The Company evaluatessegment performanceprimarily based on operating income (loss).
The Company has aggregated all of its corpoiate costs,aswell as other businessventures,within Corporate
Items and Eliminations; however, professlonal and contract services that relate to activities of a specific

segment have been allocated to that segment.

• The U.S, Equities segment includes listed cash equities and .exchange-traded products transaction
servicesthat occur on BZX and BYX. It also includes the listed eashequities and eitchange-traded

products routed transaction services that occur on Trading..It also includes the listings business
where ETFs äre listed onBZX.

* The European Equities segment includes the pan-European listed cash equities transaction services,
ETFs, exchange-traded commodities and international depository reedipts that occur on the RIE,
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BTL. It also includes the listed cash equities and exchanga-traded products routed transaction

services that occur on Chi-X Europe, as well as the listings bsiness wliere ETFs can be listed on
BTL. The Company acquired Chi-X Europe on Noveinber30, 2011.. See note3 for additional
information.

• The U.S.Options segmentincludes the listed.equity options transaction services that occur on BZX.
This segnient began tradilig listed equity options in February2010.It also includes the listed equity
options routed transaction servicesthat occuron Tiading,

Sununarized financial data of the Company's reportable seginents was asfollows (in thousands):t

Corporate

European items and

U.S.Equities Equitien U.S.Options eliniinations Total

2013;
Revenues. S 662,798 S 86,415 S 92,283 S --- S 841,496
Revenues lesscost of revenues 123,940 57,578 15,313 - 196,831
Depitóiation andamortization 4,359 9,882 928 - 15,169
Opemtíng inecine (loss) 77,393 17,440 8,469 (1,529) 101,778
Totahissets 215,784 297,r96 6;845 (62,882) 456,943
Goodwill - 197,937 - - 197,937
IrÀangibleassets,net - 48,778 - 217 48,995
Debt - - - 246,024 246,024
Purchases of property and

equipment 3,262 187 148 - 3,597

20120
Revenues 723R20 S 82iS29 S 78,655 $ - S 884,704
Revenueslesscostofrevenues [27,136 35,771 14,046 - 176,953
Depreciation andamortizátion 4,406 I I,478 1,[57 - 17)041
Operatinginconie(loss) 83,076 (25,174) 7,705 (6,291). 59,316
Total assets 170,579 292,936 9,002 (2,947) 409,570
Goodwill - 194,294 - - 194;294
Intangible assets, net - 57,379 - 217 57,596
Contingentconsideration

liability - 3,780 - - 3.780
Debt - - 287,619 287,619
Purchases of property and

equipment 4,518 310 1,651 421 6,900

20il:
Revenues S 840,801 S 28,389 S 57,439 S - S 926,629
Revenites lesscost of revenues 115,352 10,656 1,976 127,984

Depreciatiori and amortization 4,729 2)92 872 8,393
Operatingiricome(loss) 69,720 (24,448) (4,409) (2,578) 38,285
Total assets 267,800 325,524 4,861 (3;282) 594,903
Goodwill - 185,549 185,549
Intangible assets;net, - 61,336 - - 61,336
Contingentconsideration

liability - 52,600 - - 52,600
Furchases of property and

equipment 2,438 6,441 674 - 9,553
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Geograp/ric Data

The following table presents reyenues and long-lived assets, net by geographic area for 2013, 2012 and

2O11 (in thotisands). Revenues are classiiled basedupon the location of the trading venue. Long-lived
assets information is basedon the physicaí location of the assets.

Total Longiliyed
revenues assets

2013:
United States $ 755,081 $ 8,146
United Kingdoin 86,415 250,363

Total $ 841,496 $ 258,509

2012:
United States $ 801;876 $ 9,904
UnitedKingdom 82,828 258,983

Total $ 884,704 $ 268,887

2011:
United States. $ 898,240 $ 8,634
UnitedKingdoni 28,389 257,832

Total $ 926,629 $ 266,466

(14) Employee Benëfit Plan

The Company offers a SIMPLE Individual Retirement Account for the benefit of all U.S.employees. The

Company matches participating employee contributions of up to three percent of salary. All
U.S.employees are eligible to participate.The Company's contribution amounted to $0.5million for the
year ended Decembei- 31, 2013And $0.4million for the years endedDecember31, 2012 and 2011.This

expenseis included in compensation and benefits in the consolidated statements of income.

BTL operates a stakeholder contribution plan and contributes to employee-selected stakeholder
contribution plans. The Company matched participating employee contributions of up to five percentof
saíaiy, All employees of BTL were eligible to participate. The Company's contribution amounted to
$0.4 million for the years ended December 31,.2013 and 2012 and $0.3 million for the year ended
December 31 2Oll. This expense is included in compensation and benefits in the consoudatedstatements
of income.

Chi-X Europe operated a defined contribution plan knoivn as the PersonalPension Plan (the Plan). All.

employees of Chi-X Europe were eligible to participate in 2012 and. 201L The, cost of contributions

payable by the Company with regards to the Plan for the year are expensed as incurred. For the years
ended DeceJuber 31, 2012 and2011 the Conipany contributed $0.3million and $0.1million, respectively.
This expenseis included in compensationand benefits in the consolidated statements ofincome.
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(15) Related Party Transactiótis

Certain affiliates of stockholders of.BATS conduct trading activity througli the Company. The extent of

such activity is presented in the accompanying consolidated statements of financial conditio1i, income and
cash flows;

The Company maintains brokerageaccounts with a stocidiolder.As of Decembei:31,2013 and2012,$59.2
million and $67.9million, respectively, in cash and cash equivalents and financial investments Avereheld
in suchaccounts.

(16) Regulatory Caintal

As a broker-dealer registered with the SEC, Trading is subject to the $EC's Uniform Net Capital rule
(Rule 15c3-1),whicii requires the maintenance of minimum net òapital,at defined.TÍ1eŠEC'srequirement

also provides that equity capital may not be withdrawn or a cash dividend paid if certain minimum nei
capital requirements are not met. Trading computes its net capital requirernents under the basic method
provided for inRule 1503-1, which, as of December31, 2013 and2012, requires Trading to maintain net
capital equal to the greater of 6,67% of aggregate indebtedness: iteins, as defined, or $0.1 million, At
Deceinber 31,2013 and2012, Trading had net capital of $6.4inillion and$6,2 milhou, respectively, whidh
was $6.1million and$5.9million, respectively, in excess of its required net capital of $03 million fór both

years.

As entities segulatedby the Financial Conduct Authority (FCA),BTL and Chi-XEurope are both subject

to the Capital Resources Requirement (CRR), As a RIE, BTL computes.its CRR in accordance \vith its
Financial Risk Assessment,as agreedby the FCA.This-CRR was.$16.6million at December 31,2013.In
prior years BTL wasa Banks,Investment firms, PRUdential (BIPRU)730k firm as defined by the Markets
in Financial Instruments Directive of the FCA. At December 31,. 2012 BTL computed its CRR as the
greaterof the baserequirement of $9.4million or the summationof the credit risk, market risk and .fixed
overheads regriirements, as defined.At December 31, 2013 and 2012, BTL had capital in excessof.its

requiredCRR of $12.9million and$7.3million, respectively.

As a Banks, Investment Erms PRUdential (BIPRU) 50k firm as defined by the Markets in Financial
Instruments Directive of the ECA, Chi-X Europe computes its CRR as the greater of the base requirement

of $0.1million at December 31, 2013 and $0.6million at December 31, 2012, or the summation of the
credit risk, naarket risk and fixed overheads requirements, as defined. At December 31, 2013, Chi-X

Europa had capital in excessof its required CRR of $1.4million. At December 31,2012, Chi-X Europe
had capital in excess of its requiredCRR of $2.7million.

(17) Stock-Based Compensation

The Company utilizes equity award programs for offering long-term incentives to its employees.The

equity incentives have been granted in the form of nonstatutory stock options and restricted stock. In
conjunction with these: programs, the Company recognized stock-based compensation expense of
$2.2 million, $5.6 million and $5.3million for the years ended December 31, 2013, 2O12 and 2Oll,
respectively. This exliense is included in compensation and benefitsin the consolidated statements of
income,
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Stock Options

The Company has two stock option plans pursuant to which stock options have been granted: the Amended
alid Restated BATS Global Markets, Inc. .2008 Stock Option Plan (2008 Plan) and the BATS Global

Markets, Inc.2009 Stock Option Plan (2009 Plan).Options granted under these plans generally vest over

four years.Optionsgranted under the 2008 Plan have a five-year contractual term, vihile dptions granteci
under the 2009 Planhave a ten-year dontractual term. Pursuant to the 2009 Stock Option Plan and the 2008
StookOption Planethe Company authorized grants öfoptions to its full-tinte employees to purchase up to
2,195,417sharesof ti1e Company's stock. Such shares must be previously unissuedoi· reaequiredshares.

In connection with the Company's failed atteinpt of an initial public offering (IPO) during 2012, the

Coutpany s registration statement on Form Sal wasdeclared effective by the SEC.As a result of the
registration statement being declared effective andpursuant to the 2008Plananti 2009 Plan, aíÍreinaining
outstanding uiwested stóck options would become fully vested one year after the effectiveness of ti1e

Company's registration statenient.The Company recorded $0.4million and $L5 million in stock-based
compensation expense for the years endedDecember 31,2013, andDecember 31,2012,respectively, as a
result.of the vesting acceleration of outstanding unvested stock options.

During 2012, the Company modified the éxercise prices of etitstanding stock opfions as a result.of the
extraordinary dividends paid during.2012 pursuant to the anti-dilutive proyisions of tile 2008 Plan and
2009 Plan.The exercise piices were decrénsedby $3.31and$9.96for the dividendspaid in August 2012
and December 2012, respectively.

Summary stock option activity is presented below:

Weighted

Weighted nyerage
nyerage remaining Aggregate

Number e ercise conmetual. intrinsic
ofshares .price term(years) value

Outstanding,December31,2010 2,bØ5,750$ 26.53 3.2 $ 30093,033
Exerejsed (343,000) 16.63 10,864,163
Forfeited (58,250) 38.71

Outstanding,Decembpf 31,20 l l 1,604,500 28.20 3.1 37,030,383
Exercised (1030,6.55) 20.59 17949,059
Forfeited (37,220) 44A0

Outstanding, December31;2012 53Ò,n5 $ 27.62 6.7 $ 1,652,529
Exercised (39,750) 28.51 517,628
Forfeited (7;500) 31.93

Outstanding;December 31,2013 489,375 $ 28.30 5.8 S 2,825,771

Exercisableat December3í,2013 489,375 $ 28,30 5.8 $ 2,825,771
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Summary of the status of nonvested options is presented below:
Weighted

average grant-

Nouvested shares Shares date fair value

December31 2010RNonvested 998,500 $ 18.03
Vested (446,188) 14.01
Forfeited (58,250) 38,71

December 3 f, 2011 -Nonvested 494,062 21.16
Vested (236,030) 18.28
Forfeited (37,220) 40.23

December 31,2012 - Nonvested 220;812 24.25
Vested (213,312) 23.29
Forfeited (7,500) 25.65

December31,2013- Nonvested - $

Cashproceeds receivedfroni 20,850 and 82,250 optionsexercised for the years ended Deceinber 31, 2012.
and 201t, respectively,was $0.4niillion and $1.2million, respectively.During 20l3, 2012 and.20Il the
Company purchased 30,228,756,779 and 166,824 treasury shares for $1.0million, $28.8 million and
$8.1milliòn, respectively, as the result of 39,750,1,009,805and 260,750 options exercised,respectively,
upon cashless exei·ciše to satisfy the exercise.price andemployeeincome tanwithholdings upän exercise.
Excess tax benefits from stock optiori exercises recognized during the years ended December 31, 2013,
2012 and2011was $0.1 million, $3.3million and$3.3million, respectively.

Restricted Stock

In 2012, the Company establishedthe Amended andRestated BATS Global Markets; Inc. 2012 Equity
Incentivo Plan (2012 Plan) under which the Company grants restricted stock to certain employees and

directors. Restricted stock gi·ahted under the plan has a teneyearcolitractual term.Pursuantto the 2012
Plan, the Company is authorized to grant restricted stock up to 525,000 shares.
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Summary restricted stock activity is preselited belovi:

Weighted
average

Number of grautdate
shares fair value

Nonvestedstock at December 31,2011 - $ -

Granted 90,829 37.53
Vested

Nonvested stock at December 31, 2012 90,829 37.53

Graitted 88,606 3Ï94
Vested . (25,061) 37.58

' Nonvested stock at December31,2013 . 154,374. S 35.46

The total unrecognized compensation expense, related tò nonvested restricted stock is approximately
$5.2millionywhich will be recognizedover aweighted average remaining period of 3.4years.

During 2013, the Company purchased6,689treasury shares for $0.2million as the result of 25,061 shares
of restricted stockvesting to satisfythe employeeincome tax withholdings upon exercise.

During 2013,the Coinpany also paiti $0A niilii0n for dividends previously .declared upon yesting of
restricted stocle

Share Repurchase Program

During 2012,the Company approved.a Share Repurchase Prograni (the SRP).The SRP was effective for a
one-year period ending on December 31, 2013.During 2013, the Companyrepurchased36;536 sharesinto
treasuryfor $1.fmillion.
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(18) Income Taxes

Net deferred tax assets cönsist of the following components as of December 31, 2013 and 2012

(in thousands):

2013 2012

Deferredtax assets:
Štock-basedcompensation $ 5,370 $ 4,904
Goodwill andofherintangibles: 5,391 8,136
Bad.debts 137 159
Other assets 1,034 680
Propertyandequipment 3,69$ 2,745
Intangiblestart-upcosts 235 457
Unrecognized.taxbenefits 2,353 3,178
Netoperatinglossesand creditcarryforwards 5,570 13,494
Transactioncosts 462 -

Grossdeferredtax assets 24,447 33,753
Lessdeferred tax assetvaluationallowance (16) (16,94f)

Totaldeferredtaxassets 24,431 16,812

I)eferredtax liabilities:
Prepaidexpenses 915 713.
Foreignbranchlosses 9,672
Foreigncurrencytranslationgain 4,863 3,166

Total deferredtax liabilities 15,450 3;879

Net deferredtax assets $ 8,981 $ 12,933

The deferred tax asset associated with net operating losses is $5.6 million. The net operating losses have no

expiration.
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The provision for income taxes for the years ended December 31,2013, 2012 and 2011 consists of the
following (in thousands):

2013 2012 2011

Current tax expense:
Federal .S 23,540 $ 18 807 $ 18,849
State 2,540 13 475 909

Total current tax expense 26,080 32,282 19,758

Deferred income tax bénefit;
Federal, state and foreign 2,745 (5,749) (4,963)

Total deferred income tax

expense (benefit) 2.745 (5;749) (4,963)

Income.tax provision $ 28,825 $ 26,533 $ 14,795

For the yearsended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011, income fion continuing operatiónsbefore takes
consists of the folloviing:

2013 2012 2011

U:S.Operations $ 58,461 $ 83 620 $ 55,566

Foreign operations 17,202 (25 513) (17,223)
$ 75,653 $ 58 107 $ 38,343
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Income tax expense attributable to income from continuing operations consists of:

Current Deferred Total

Year endedDecember 31,2013:

U.S.federal $ 23,540 $ 12,051 $ 35,591
Stateandlocal 22540 366 2,906

Foreign jurisdiötioris - (9,672) (9,672)
$ 26,080 $ 2,745 $ 28,825

Year endedDecember 31,2012:
U.S.federal $ 18,807 $ (5,30s) $ 13,499
Stateand local 13,475 (441) 13,034

Foreignjurisdictions - - 0
$ 32,282 $ (5;749) $ 26S33

Year endedDecember 31,2011:
U.S.federal $ 18,849 $ (5,462) $ 13387

State andlocal 909 499 1408

Foreign jurisdictions
$ 19,758 $ (4,963) $ 14795

In 2013, $0.1million and in 2012 and2011, $3.3million of incometax benefits primarily relatedto stock-

basedcompensation was recorded asadditional paidsin-capital in the ConsolidatedStatenients of Financial
Condition.Also in 2013,2012 and 2011,$1;/ niillion, $4.8million, and ($0.8million), respectively of
income tax expense(benefit) wasrecorded as other coinprehensive income in the Consolidated Statemerits
of Financial Condition.

The Company has elected to treat BTL and Chi-X Europe as flo\v-through entities for U.S.federal income

tax purposes, As a result, the activides for BTL andChi-X Europe are treated asbranches of the Company,
and feable income or loss reported loyBTL and Chi-X Europe:are included in the U.S.federal inconte tax

return of theCompany.The Company assessedthe realizability of its U,K. deferred tax assets and released
its valuation allowance in 2013.The Company recorded a corresporidingU.S.deferred tax fiability for the
U.K.deferred tax assets.It is inot atiticipated that the Ú.K, tax liability vll be offset byU.S.foreigp tax
credits dueto the Companyis overall foreign loss position. Pursuant to U.K.tax law,net operatinglosses
do not expire aslong asthe tradeor businessthatgeneratedthe losses remains in existente.
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The income tax provision differs from the amount ofincome tax determined by ayplying the U.S.federal
income tax rate to income before income tax provision for the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and
20i1 due to the following(in thousands):

2013 . 2012 . 2011

Computed"expected" tax provision S 26,482 35.0% 5 203337 35.0°Á $ 13,420 35:0%
Increase (decrease) in income tax

resulting from:
Nondeductible expenses 1,475 1.9 (962) (1.7) 903 2.4
Section199 benefit (1,543) (2.0) (1,439) (2.5) (1,315) .(3.4)
State income taxes 4,359 518 9,089 15.7 1j30 2.9
Release oftincertain tarpositions (3$46) (5.0) -

Other 1,798 2.4 . (492) (0.8) 657 1,7

Incometax provision $ 28,825 38.1% $ 26,533 45.7% $ 14,795 38.6%

Nondeductible expenses in 2012 include:a deduttion of $1.0million for previously capitalized stoák
issuancecosts which became deductible uponthe abandonmentof the Company's IPO.

The effective taxrate foi· 2013 was 38.1% compared to 45.7%in 2012 and 38.6% in 2011.The effective

tax rate increased from 2011 to 2012primarily due to increasesin unrecognized tax benefits relatedto state
tax filing positions. The effective tax rate decreased from 2012 to 2013 dueto the current year recognition

of preyiously unrecognized state tax benefits.

The Company provides a valuation allowance against net deferred tax assets if, based on management's
assessment of historical and projected future operating.results and othér available evidence, it is more
likely than slot that some or all of the deferred tax assets will not be realized.Management believes it is
more likely than not that the deferred tax assets will be realizedbasedupon expectationsof futgre taxable
income.

In the current year, the Company released its valuation allowance associated with its U.K.net deferred tax
assets.A reconciliation of the U.K.valuation allowance for the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and

2011 is asfollows (in thousands):
Changes to

acetimulated

1Baiance Valuation (Credited) other

beginning of allowance charged to comprehensive Dalance end

period acquired income (loss)income Rekases orperiod

December31,2013 S 16,941 3 - S (6,974) $ (486) S (9À81) S -
Decembei 31,2012 16,492 - (496) 945 - 16;94)
Decemher31,2011 7,725, .. 6,093 2,777 (103) - 16,49z
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The valuation anowancereflects U.K. corporate income tax rate changes enacted in 2013 reducing the rate

from 24% to 23% from April 1,2013 to Marc1131, 2014 and to 21% beginning April 1,20[4, The effect is
credited to income for the year ended December 31, 2013.

A reconciliation of the unrecognizedtax benefits for the;years endedDecember31,2013,2012 and 2011 is
asfollows (in thousands):

Yearended December 31

2013 .2012 2011

Balanceatbeginningof year $ 9,079 $ 1,918 $ 202

Additioyis for current year taxpositions 1,862 3,000 678
Additions for prioryeartax positions 41 5,157 1,038
Reductionsfor prioryeartaxpositions (4,593) (996) -

Reductionsrelated to expirationsof statute
of limitations (305) - --

Settleinents

Baíanceat endof year $ é,084 $ 9,079 $ 1,918

It is reasonablypossible that the total atidant of unredognizedtax benefits may decrease by approximately
$0.3million within the next twelve months due to expiring statutes of limitation.

AtDecember31, 2013 and 2012, the Company had $4.0million and $5.6million, respectively, of

unrecognized tax benefits,net of federal benefit that, if recognized,wouki affect the effective taxrate. The

Contpany liad accrued interest and penalties of $0.6 million and $1.4million related to uncertain tax

positions at Dedember 31,2013 and 2012. Total interest and penalties decreased by $0.8million during
2013 and increased by $1.2million in 2012.

The Company files aU.S.federal income tax return and tax returns in various jurisdíctions, including a
U.K.income tax return for its U.K,operations.The Company's open fax years are 2010 through2013.

On September 13,2013, Treasury and the Intemal Revenue Service issued final regulations regarding the
deduction and capitalization of expenditures related to tangible property. The final regulations under

Internal Revenue Code Sections 162; 167 and 263(a) apply to amounts paid to acquire, produce, or
improve tangible properfy as well as dispositions of such property andare generally effective for tax years
begimiing on or after January 1,2014. We have evaluated these regulations and determined they will not
hatei material impact on otir consolidated results of operations,cash flows or financial position.
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(19) Earnings Per Share

The following table sets forth the coinputation of basic and diluted earnings per share (in thousands,except
per share data):

2013 2012 . 2011

Numerator:
Net income $ 46,838 $ 31,574 $ 23,548

Denominator:

Weightedaverage conunon shares
outstanding for basic earnings per
share 22,642 22,509 18,230

Weighted áverageeffectof dilutive
securities:

Stock options and restricted stock 97 . 237 515

Denominator for diluted
eamings per share 22,739 22,746 18,745

Basic and diluted earnings per share:
Basiceamings per share $ 5.07 .$ L40 $ 1.29
Diluted earnings per share . $ 2.06 $ 1.39 $ 1,26

Stock options and restricted stock to purchase46388, 102,862and 150,162 shares at December31, 2013,
2012 and 2011, respectively, were outstanding but were not included in the cómputation. of eliluted
earnings per share asthey were adi-dilutive underthe treasury stock method.

(20) Conimitments, Contingencies and Guarantees

Ope?atingLeases

During 2008,the Coinpañyeriteredintofournoncancelableoperating leaseagreements: office space for its
corporate headquarters for 5 years with two 5year renewal options, as. amended in 2009; office space for
its BTL headquarters for 10years with a break-up clauseafter 5 years; office space for its New York office
for 5years; and a U.S. disaster recovery space for 5 years.In connection with these leases,the Company
received reimbrirsement for leasehold improvements. of $1.Linillion. This reimbursement is a lease
incentive vyhich has beeri recognized as a-liability and is being amortized on a straight-line basisover the

respective lease terms as a reduction iri ocoupancy expense.The feasehold improvements are included in
propeny and equipment, net and are being amortize 1over the shorter of the estimated useful life of the
improvements and the respective lease tenns. In June 2012, BTL exercisedthe break-up clause with its
leaseandmovedits dorporate office to the Chí-X Buropefacilities.

In November 2012, the Company entered into a lease agreeinent with a data center provider for the

primary data center in Slough, U K.This lease is for 41 months. In Decernber2011,the Company also
enteredinto new leaseagreéments with the data center provider for the priinary data center in Weehawken,
New Jersey and the back-up data center site in Chicago, Illinois. These leases are för 30months and
34 monthsrespectively.
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In October 2012 andamended in November 2013, the Coinpany entered into a 10year leaseagreement for
ofTice space in New York, with tiie one-time option to cancel the lease after 5 years.

In November 2013, the Company extended its lease at the U.S.disaster recovery space for an additional 5

yeais.

la Deceinber 2013, the: Company entered into new five-year lease agreements with a new data center

provider -in Secaucus,.New Jersey.

Future annual mininium lease commitments under these operating leases as of December 31, 2013, areas
follows (in thousands):

2014 $ 3,115
2015 2,231
2016 2,120
2017 2,122
2018 1,930
Thereafter 4,373

Total $ 15,891

Rent expensevias $1.8 million, $2.3million and $1.5million, for the years ended December31,.2013,
20f2 and 2011, respectively, wlch is recorded in occupancy expense in the accompanying consolidated
statements of income.

Legal Proceedings

From time to time the Company is involved in various legal proceedings arising in the ordinary course of
business.The Company does not believe that the äuteómeof any of the reviews, inspectionsor other legal
proceedingswill haye a material impact on the consolidated financial condition, results of operations or
cash flows; hówever, litigation is subject to many unceitainties and the outcome of individual litigated

matters is not predictablewith assurance.

In complaints filed on July 22,2009,May 11, 201 and August 17,2010 in the U.S.District Court for the
Eastern District of Texas, Realtime Data,.LLC d/bla/ IXO (Realtime) claimed that the Company, along
with certain other financial instrument exchanges, investment and conunercial banking companies and
financial data providers, infringed six Realtime patents by using, seiling or offering for sale financial data
coinpression products or services. The complaint sought declaratory and injunctive relief or, in the
alternative, a compulsory ongoing licensing fee, as well as unspecified damagesfor past and future

inflingement,. attorney¢ feds, costs and expenses.The allegations 1:elateto data products for which the

Compány doesnot directly charge any fees.Specifically, it is alleged that the Company violated several of
Realtíme's patents through its use of the FAST protocol as it relates to BATS FAST PITCH, OPRA
instrinnentalities, and SIAO instrumentalities. On September 21, 2011, the casewas transferred to ti2e
U S.District Court for theSouthern District of New York. The Court issueda final order dismissing the

case on November 9,2012. Realtime's appeal of tive Court's riecision to dismissthe case has been fully
briefed and oral arguments were held on Decemhet 4, 2013.On January27, 2014,the U.S.Court of
Appeals for theFederal Circuit affirmed the entirety of the decision issuedby the Court.Outside counsel
has indicatedthat the likelihood that this casewiube acceptedfor any further review is extremely low.The
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Company bälieves these allegations are without merit and intends to vigorously defend this litigation. At
this tinie, the Company believes an unfavorable outcome is not probable and is unable to estimate a range

of loss, if any,as the damages sought in the allegations have not been quantified or substantiated.The

Company does not believe losses, if any;would have a material effect on its results of operations or
financial position taken asa whole.

In a complaint fded onJune 14,2013 in the U.S.District Court for the Distritt of Delaware,Relay IP, Inc.
(Relay IP) claimed that the Conipany infringed a.Relay IP:patent through the Company's distribution of
datausing a muíticast routing methodknown asthe Protocol IndependentMulticast-Sparso Mode standard,
also known as the PIM-Slå standard. Relay IP has also filed similar complaints against certain other
fmancial instrument exthanges, financial data providers, telecommunications companies, and hardware

manpfacturers.Cisco Systemš,Inc. (Cisco), a nameddefendantin a similar complaint and a manufacturer
of hardware on which.the PIM-SM standard is hnplemented,Ivasfiled a motion to intervene and.stay in
tyhich Cisco requests that the court stay litigation between its customers (which includes the Company)
and Relay IP in favor of an action betweenCisco andRelay IP. Relay IP has opposed this motion.Øutside
counsel believes that there is a possibliity that the motion will be granted,but is not able to predict the

court's decision at this time. Relay IP's doinplaint ägäinst the Company seeks declaratory judgment,
tmspecified damagpg including enhanced damages,costs,and pre- and loost-judgment interest, and any
other felief deemedjust andproper.Specifically, it is alleged that the Companyviolated a patent:owned by
Relay IP through its use of the PIM-Sl(standard as it relates to the distribution of Multicast PITCH and
BAŸS Multicast Latency Feed.The Company began charging fees for Multicast PITCH onluly 1,2013,
and does not directly charge any fees for BATS Multicast Latency Feed.While it is too early in the
litigation to estimate any rangeof possible lossesor predict the outconie of.the case, the Coinpany believes
that it has not infringed anyvalid patentand intendsto vigorously defènd this litigntion.

In a complaint filed on January 23 2014 in the U.S.District Court for the District of Kansas,Leveraged
Innovations LLC (LI) cläimed that the Company infringed severalLI patents by allowing the exchange of
shares of leveraged exchange traded funds (Leveraged ETFs) through botli B7-X and BYX. LI claims to

own several.patentsdirectedto computerizedmetbods for creating and exchanging Leveraged ETFs. LPs
complaínt against the Company seeks declaratory judgment, damages (including royalties aiid prejudgment
interest),attorneys' feesandcosts, injunctive relief, andany other relief providedunderthe lawor deemed
just andproper by the court.While it is too early in the litigation to estimate any range oipossible losses or
predict the outcome of.the.case, the Company believes that it has not infringed any valid patent and intends
to vigorously defendthis litigation.

As a self-reguíatoiy organization under the jurisdiction of the SEC, the Conipany is subject to routine
reviews and inspections by the SEC,. änd Trading is subject to reviews and inspections by the Financial

Industry Regulatory Authority (FINRA).

In February 2012, the Company received a written request from the SEC's Division of Enforcement

seekingdocuments and information related to the development,modification and use of order types,and

the Company's communications. with certain mai'ket participants (inaluding certain exchange members
affiliated witi certatir of the Company's stockholders and directors) regarding the development,
modification and use of order types; the Company's information .technology systems; and trading
strategies. The Company received a supplemental information request in August 2012 requesting
additional information regarding the Company's corporate history, relationships with shareholders and
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members,and additional questionsregarding the development of order types.The Company is cooperating
with the staff andall requested information hasbeen provided to date.

In addition, onMarch.23, 2012, an internal systems problem caused amatching engine failure on the BZX
Exchange that ultimately resulted in the need for BATS Global Markets to cancel its IPO. On March 28,
2012, the Conipany's management met with SEC Commissioners and staff Washington,DC to discuss
the matter.Subseiluent to that meeting,the Company was informed by the SEC's Division of Enforcement
that it was opening an investigation into the matter.As part of its investigation, the Company received a
written information requestTTom the SEC'sDivision of Enfortement seeking documents related to the

IPO, which documentshave beenproduced.The Company is cooperating with the staff.In:addition, the
Boards of Directois of BATS Global Markets, BZX and BYX have concluded an external re:Viewof the

events leading up to the failed IPÖ.The Company and the professionals retained b the Company to
conduct the review presented the results of that review to SEC staff in November 2012. The SEC
subsequently scheduled testimony with four Company executives for February 2013. The Company
continues to cooperate with the SEC onthis matter.The Company will defend itself vigorously should the
SEC staff reconimend that an enforcement action be instituted, or should the SEC determine to institute
suchaction.

On April 10, 2012, members.of tiie Company's management met XVith representatives from the SEC's
Division of Enforcement in Washington,DC to discussthe Company's trading systems andthe inanner in
which orders are processed and executed on our markets. The meeting was a result of an open SEC
Enforcement inyestigation related to bigh frequency trading. The Company is cooperatingwith and has

provided various information to the staffin connection with this investigation.

If the Company is found to be out of com15liance with obligations under the federal securities laws, the

Company could be subject to judicial or administrative proceedingsthat niay result in substantial penalties.
Any such liability or penalties could have a material adverseeffect on the Company's business, At this
time, the Conipany believes it is too early to determine the pröbability of assertion of a clairn or the

probability of an unfavorable outcome if any claim is asserted in connection with the investigations
described (bove and the Companyis unable to estimate a range of loss,if any.

Guarantees

The Coinpany uses.Wedbush Securities andMorgan Stanley to clear .its routed cash equities transactions.
WedbushSecurities and TvíorganStanley guarantee the trade until one day after the trade date,after which
time the National Sécuiities Clearing Corporation (NSCC) provides a guarantee.In the case of a failure to
perform on the part on one of its olearing firms Wedbpsh Securities or Morgan Stanley, the Company
provhies the guarantee to the counterparty to the trade. The Options Clearing Corporation (OCC) acts as a
central colmterparty on all transactions in listed equity options, and as such, guarantees clearance and
settlement of atl of the Company's options transactions. The Company believes that any potential

requiiementfor the Company to make paynients under these guarantees is remoteandaccordingly, hasnot
recorded any liability in the consolidated financial statements for these guarantees.
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(21) Quarterly Dat (Unaudited)(iii Thoiisands, except per share data).
Year ended

First Second Third Fourtli Decembel'31,

quarter quarter quarter tiuartér 2013

Total revenue $ 218,941 S 230;468 S 195,036 S 197,051 S 841,496
Operatingexpénses 22,16 2),774 25 027 26,056 95,053
Opemting income 27,709 28|139 25 705 20,225 .101,778

Net income S 15,995 S 12,251 S 9,928 S $,664 S 46 838

Basic anddihited eamings per
share:

Basic carningsper sharc .S 0.71 S 0.54 Š 0/M $ 0.38 $ 2.07
Dilutedearningspershare S 0.70 S 0.54 S 0.44 $ 0.38 5 2.06

Year ended

First Second Third Fourth December31,

quarter qtiarter quarter quarter 2012 .

Total revenue $ 214,393 S 230,735 S 217,036 S 222 540 S 884,704
Operating expenses 32,753 27,665 24,962 32;257 117,637
Operatingincome 10,924 [5;478 18;927 13,987 59,316

Net income S 7,506 S 1O,173 $ 11,528 S 2,367 S 31,574

Basic anddiluted eamings per

sharci
Basic eamingspershares S 0.34 3 0.45 S 0.51 S n10 $ 1.40
Dilutedcaniingspèrshare $ 0.33 S 0.4$ S Ø.51 S 0.10 S 1.39

Year ended

First Second Third Fourth December31,
quar(er tjuarter quarter quarter 2011

Total revenue S 209,224 S 200,836 S 281,951 S 234,618 S 926,629
Opciafing exlierises 19,668 19,719 18?39 31,773 89,699
aperating income 4;757 5,637 19,952 7,939 38,285

Net income $ 2,681 $ 2,850 S 12;005 S 6,012 S 23,548

Basic and diluted eamingsper

share:

Basie camings per share S 0.15 S 0.16. S 0.67 $ 0.31 S 1.29
Diluted eamings per share S 0.15 S 0.15 $ 0.65 S 0.30 S 1.26

(22) Subsequent Events

The Company has performed an evaluation of events that have occurredsubsequent to December 31,2013
through February25,.2014 the date the consolidated financial statements were isstied,

Øn january 31,2014,the Company completed the acqtiisition of 100%of the outstandingcommon stock
öf Direct Edge Holding LLC in exchange for 9.8million shares of comnion stockof the Company.
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Upon consumination of the acquisition of Direct Edge Holding LLC, the Company also entered into (i) a
term loan agreentent in the amount of $470 million and (ii) revolving loans not to exceed $100 million.
The proceeds.received ffom the term loativyere usedby the Company to fluance the acqilisition, repaythe
debt outstanding at December 31,2013,pay an extraordinary dividend to shareholders,and other corporate

purposes.The term of ti1e loan is six years ending on January31,2026 with variable interest i-ate based on
3-morith LIBOR (with floor of 100 basis points) plus a spread of 425 basis points (400 if leverage ratio
falls below 2,25)..The origiiial issue discount was $1 2 inillion, or approximately 0.25%.The revolving
loans have an interest rate of 0,5% and a three-year teni ending on January31,2017.Principal payments

on outstanding balances are made on a quarterly basis.In connection with paymentof tlie debt outstanding
at December 31,2013, the associated original issuance discount and debt issuancecosts.were extinguished
resulting in a loss of $13.8niilliott

There have been no other subsequent events that have occurred during sunaperiod that would require
disclosure in the consolidated financial statements or would be required to be recognized in the

consolidated financial statements as of and for the year ended December 3i, 2013.
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KPMG LLP
Suite 1000
1000 Walnul Street
Kansas City, MO 64106-2162

Independent Auditors' Report on.Supplementary Inforniation

The Board of Directors
BATS.GlobalMarkets, hic.:

We have audited the consolidatedfinancial stâtemeiits of BATS Globai Markets, Inc. and.its subsidiaries

(the Company) asof andfor the year endedDecember 31,2013, andhave issuedpur report thereon dated
Februaiy25, 2014which contained an unmodified.opinion on those consolidated financial statements, Our
audit was. performed for the purpose of forming an ophiion on the consolidatedfinanoial statemetits as a
whole.The consolidating financial statementsare presented for the purposes of additional.analysis andare

not a required part of the consolidated financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of
management and wäsderived from and relatesdirectly to the underlying accounting and other records used
fa prepare lhe consolidated financial stateinents.The information :bas.heen subjected to the auditing
procedures applied in the audit of the consolidated financial statements and certain additional procedures,
including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other
records used to prepare the consolidated financial statements or to the consolidated financial statements

theinselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standardsgengtally accepted in
the United States of America.In our opinion, the information is fairly stated in ali material respects in
relatianto ti1econsolidated fmancial statements as a whole.

@Mc,· u:P

February 25, 2Øl4

KPMG LLP is a Delaware. Emited.liabiGly partnership,
the U.S..member ihm of KPMG1nlemational Cooperative.

CKPMGintemationat);a Sales enCly.



@ HMeFu Nega

i i

r Îll i

E i llí 11 II

M

lilu ifl iti L

( lli .tl til i H

i tilllHi ui 11

§ M te0ftlitti Hul

0 111 Miilllli 1 3

sill1 110IUllH I

w w

N lili 19. .lŠl . 8



u

O
E E

F Li

111111111 11 101 Ü

1111111[1 lil i ti

tiillRii IJil lät

i 011[111 011

litillii Elli

[(111111 til

B Plfltl110 fl.4 Ù i

nE



H 101 ¡ 0.1 H i

i In1Fi 0310

&

t i att i H L H

ŠÙ

H 3

š S M N

O

H Ii U i

il r irn i

a

Rumor



M

M 3 é i
3 ±

3 i I

Q

3 i (1 l

i
&

R i

{

g a

40
m i & nasa Messwaxa



E 1571%WWMt- r-

.11 i 11111$ ri e

i 10 ti l t i
5

TI i i1.)íf IfFr

IID IIbi

i utel

e
&

1

p a
n a aa aggan *


